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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF PAYRAY BANK, UAB
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PayRay Bank, UAB (hereinafter “the Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, of the
financial position of the Union as at 31 December 2022, and their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the laws on accounting and financial reporting of
the Republic of Lithuania and International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and
Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on
specific requirements regarding statutory audit of public-interest entities (Regulation (EU) No
537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code)
together with the requirements of the Law on Audit of the financial statements of the Republic of
Lithuania that are relevant to the audit in the Republic of Lithuania, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Law on Audit of the financial statements of the
Republic of Lithuania and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Each audit matter and our respective response are
described below.

Expected credit losses for loans

Please refer to the following sub-sections of Note 4 “Summary of significant accounting policies”:
“Impairment of Financial Assets”, “Measurement of ECL”, “Significant increase in credit risk
(SICR)", “Credit risk grades”, “Generating the term structure of PD”, “Determining whether credit
risk has increased significantly”, “Definition of default”, “Incorporation of forward-looking
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information”, “Restructured financial assets”, “Credit-impaired financial assets”, “Presentation of
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allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position”, as well as Note 12 “Loans to customers”,
Note 13 “Factoring receivables”, and the following sub-sections of Note 22 “Risk management”:
“Credit risk”, “Credit risk management”, “Off-balance sheet commitments”, “Expected credit
losses”, on pages 30-33, 42 and 45-51, respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, expected credit losses reported in the Bank’s statement of financial position
amounted to EUR 1584 thousand (see Notes 12, 13 and 22).

The Bank’s credit loss allowances for loans in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to EUR 490 thousand (Note 22).

Credit loss allowances for loans represent the management’s best estimate of the expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) within loans granted (exposures) at the reporting date. We focused on this area as
the determination of loss allowances requires a significant judgment and subjectivity over the
amounts of any such impairment.

Impairment allowances for performing exposures (Stage 1 and Stage 2 in the IFRS 9 hierarchy) are
determined by modelling techniques. Historical experience, identification of exposures with a
significant deterioration in credit quality, forward-looking information and management judgment
are incorporated into the model assumptions.

For non-performing exposures (Stage 3), the impairment assessment is based on the Bank’s
knowledge and understanding of each individual borrower’s circumstances. Related loss allowances
are determined on an individual basis by means of a discounted cash flows analysis.

The targeted non-routine inspection is conducted by the supervisory authority in the Bank involving
the assessment of the credit risk management practice and expected credit loss model. Due to a
significant increase in estimation uncertainty affected by the reasons stated above and the impact of
the war in Ukraine on the economy, we considered the impairment of the loans granted to be a
significant risk, therefore, we focused more attention on this area in our audit. Accordingly, we
determined this area to be a key audit matter.

How the Matter Was Addressed in the Audit
Our audit procedures among others included the following:

- we obtained an understanding of the Bank’s ECL methodology and assessed its compliance with
the relevant requirements of IFRS 9. As part of the above, we identified the relevant methods,
assumptions and sources of data, and assessed whether such methods, assumptions, data and their
application are appropriate in the context of IFRS 9 requirements. Additionally, we challenged the
management on whether the level of the methodology’s sophistication is appropriately based on
our assessment of the entity-level factors.

- we obtained an understanding of significant deficiencies in the application of an ECL model and
credit risk management included in the Bank of Lithuania’s report of the targeted non-routine
inspection.

- we made inquiries of the Bank’s risk management and information technology (IT) personnel to
gain understanding of IT applications used in the loan impairment process. Also, we assessed and
tested the Bank’s control environment for data security and access.

- we tested the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of selected controls over the
approval, recording and monitoring of loans, including, but not limited to, the controls relating to
the monitoring of identification of events of default, as well as appropriateness of the classification
of exposures into performing and non-performing, calculation of days past due, and the overall
ECL estimate.
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we assessed whether the definition of default and the staging criteria were applied consistently and
in accordance with the relevant international financial reporting standards as adopted by the
European Union,

we evaluated whether in the loan staging and ECL measurement the Bank appropriately considered
the impact of the war in Ukraine.

we critically assessed the existence of any triggers for classification to Stage 3 as at 31 December
2022, by reference to the underlying documentation (loan files) and through discussion with the
management and taking into consideration business operations of the respective customers as well
as market conditions and historical repayment pattern.

for the exposures with triggers for classification in Stage 3, challenging key assumptions applied
in the Bank’s estimates of future cash flows such as primarily collateral values (including related
haircuts) and realization period by reference to our inspection of external valuation reports, the
Bank’s internal evidence and analyses and publicly available market transaction data.

we discussed the deficiencies in accounting estimates of ECL model identified during the audit
with the representatives of the Supervision Department of the Bank of Lithuania.

we evaluated the accuracy and completeness of the loan impairment and credit risk-related
disclosures in the financial statements by reference to the requirements of applicable financial
reporting standards.

First-year audit

We have been chosen to carry out the audit of the Bank’s financial statements for the first time. Initial
audit engagements involve a number of considerations not associated with recurring audits.
Additional planning activities and considerations necessary to establish an appropriate audit strategy
and audit plan include, among others:

Gaining an initial understanding of the Bank; its business plan and financial accounting, including
its control environment and information systems sufficient to make audit risk assessments and
develop the audit strategy and plan;

Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the opening balances including the
selection and application of accounting principles; and

Communicating with the previous auditors.

How the Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

After being appointed as the Company’s auditors in 2022, we developed an appropriate audit strategy
and audit plan for this initial audit engagement. Our procedures included, in particular:

obtaining initial understanding of the Bank and its business, including its business plan, business
risks, IT systems used, internal control environment, internal controls and financial reporting
framework, to assists in performing risk assessment procedures at the Bank’s management
assertion and financial statements level;

obtaining audit evidence regarding opening balances and the appropriateness of selection and
application of key accounting policies;

close interaction with the previous auditors regarding key audit and accounting matters, as well as
the audit procedures performed by them in key financial statements areas in previous periods;
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- Discussion with the Bank’s management, responsible employees and the Audit Committee, to
understand their perspectives on the business, identified key risks and other areas of audit
importance.

Other matters — targeted non-routine inspection by the Bank of Lithuania

The Bank of Lithuania conducts the targeted non-routine inspection of the Bank, however, no
decision on the imposition of the sanction was taken as at the reporting date. There is uncertainty as
to the potential impact of the sanction on the Bank’s performance.

Other matters — decision of the Bank of Lithuania to impose enforcement measure

On 13 September 2022, the Bank of Lithuanian temporarily suspended the voting rights of a direct
shareholder 2404 S.A. in the General Meeting of Shareholders of PayRay Bank, UAB.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Bank’s Annual Report for 2022, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible
for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection to our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

In addition, our responsibility is to consider whether information included in the Bank’s annual report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements and whether annual report has been prepared in compliance with applicable legal
requirements. Based on the work carried out in the course of audit of financial statements, in our
opinion, in all material respects:

+ The information given in the Bank’s annual report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

* The Bank’s annual report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Law
on Financial Reporting by Undertakings of the Republic of Lithuania.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the laws on accounting and financial reporting of the Republic of Lithuania, and
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

o  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Other requirements of the auditor's report in accordance with Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 of the
European Parliament and of the Council.

In accordance with the decision made by shareholders on 30 June 2022 we have been chosen to carry
out the audit of the Bank’s 2022 year and 2023 year financial statements for the first time. Our
appointment to carry out the audit of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with the
decision made by the General Meeting of Shareholders is renewed every two years and the period of
total uninterrupted engagement is one year.

We confirm that our opinion in the Opinion section is consistent with the additional report, which we
have submitted to the Bank and the Audit Committee.

We confirm that in light of our knowledge and belief, services provided to the Bank are consistent
with the requirements of the law and regulations and do not comprise non-audit services referred to
in Article 5(1) of the Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council.

Throughout our audit engagement period, we have provided non-audit services, comprising
translation of financial statements.

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Darius Gliaubicas.

Grant Thornton Baltic UAB
Audit company’s licence No 001513
Upés st. 21-1, Vilnius

Lithuanian Certified Auditor

Darlu Clisubicss o

License No 000594
27 April 2023
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Bank code: 304862948, Lvivo st. 25-702, Vilnius, Lithuania

Annual Report for the year
ended 31 December 2022

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

This annual management report has been prepared for 2022. Annual management report presents the
information of PayRay Bank, UAB (“the Bank”).

1. State of the Bank and overview of activities

In 2019, the Bank received a banking licence from the Bank of Lithuania and on 15 October 2020 it
successfully became a bank; 100% of its share capital and voting rights belong to 2404 S.A. The Bank
is supervised and regulated by the Bank of Lithuania and European Central Bank. The headquarters of
the Bank are located in Vilnius, Lithuania.

In 2020, acceptance of deposits and other repayable funds from non-professional market participants
was initiated. The Bank provides financing to legal entities and natural persons for business purposes.

The Bank made the following investments in subsidiaries: in September 2020, established a subsidiary
PayRay SIA in Latvia, and 2021 a subsidiary PayRay Estonia QU in Estonia. The subsidiary in Estonia
does not carry out activities.

The Bank has no physical service locations, except for the central headquarters in Vilnius. The Bank
collects deposits from non-professional market participants via the Raisin platform, while financing and
deposit services to legal entities are provided via direct or remote meetings.

The Bank does not hold and did not acquire its own shares in 2022.

On 25th March 2022, the Bank completed the acquisition of part of Optima Information Technology Sri
business. The software development business was purchased as “transfer of going concern” and under
the framework of “business combination under common control” as both parties had the same sole
shareholder. Optima Information Technology Srl is a financial software development company based in
Pistoia, ltaly, which since 2018 has developed and provided product software solutions to the Bank.
Thus the acquired business became a fundamental asset for the Bank which will play a strategic role in
digitalization and improvement of the Bank’s processes by providing access to tailor-made scalable
software and an in-house software development team. The acquired business includes contracts with
13 specialized employees. The consideration agreed upon for the acquired business was EUR 1. IFRS
3 Business Combinations does not provide for any method for business combination of joint ventures,
and therefore such acquisition was accounted for at carrying amount, with the difference being recorded
in the balance sheet in equity as a profit (loss) not recognized in statement of profit and loss and other
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comprehensive income in accordance with ge’_neralily-accepted practice for busingss combinations under
comrnon control.

On 13 September 2022, the Board of the Bank of Lithuania adopted a decision in which a sole
shareholder of the Bank 2404'S.A.-votih'g rights. have been temporarily suspended,

In Q4 2022, the Bank started collaboration. with external consultants in shaping the Bank's
Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") policies. Moreover, the new position of an ESG risk
manager was created along with the implementation. plan which covers areas of ESG risk management,
ESG inclusion in the Bank's strategy, setting the ESG goals and perfermance indicators.

The Bank does not in any case allow, promate, facilitate nor tolerate the practices related to bribery,
corruption, embezziement and such practices are against the values and risk culture of the Bank. it is
prohibited for employees to give, accept or facilitate the bribes and corfuptive practices. In order to
ensure appropriate behaviour from employees and ‘fo prevent corruption, bribery or any other
inappropriate/improper behaviour, the Bank approved Code of Conduct and Ethics, as well as Anti-
Bribery, Anti-corruption, Gifts and Invitations Procedure, additionally training sessions for employses in
this field are conducted at least on-once a year.

As at 31 December 2022, the Bank’s equity amounted to EUR 28,953,307 (31 December 2021: EUR
34,258.570)_? the Bank assets totalled EUR. -279,{330,_523 (31 December 2021: 180,884,755), and. the
Bank's financial result in 2022 was a loss of EUR 4,195,751 (2021: a loss of EUR 93,996).

In 2022, compared to previous reporting period, the Bank's net interest income increased by 56%, and
the interest expenses on deposits amounted to EUR 3,091,111 (2021: EUR 648,446). Net commission
income in 2022 were positive andtotalled RUR 111,675, while in. 2021 they were negative (EUR - 5,238).
The Bank's financing portfalic based on the type of financing as of the last day of the financial year
consisted of the following:

« EUR33,780,373 of factoring. (31 December 2021: EUR 39,785,686);

» EUR 135,970,348 of [ans (31 December 2021: EUR 82,967,646);

. EUR'18,221,659-0f-lease’- {31 December 2021: EUR 836,189).

The Bank's compliance with prudential ratios as at 31st December 2022 is presented in the table below:

Capital adequacy ratio 25.11%

‘Leverage ratio 10.09%

11




PayRay Bank, UAB
Bank code: 304862948, Lvivo st. 25-702, Vilnius, Lithuania

Annual Report for the year
ended 31 December 2022

Liquidity coverage ratio 1626.02%
Net stable funding ratio 156.65%
Large exposure requirement 16.34%

2. Strategy and plans

The Bank provides services in Germany, Lithuania, and Latvia. In Germany, through the Raisin deposit
platform, the Bank provides natural persons with the opportunity to choose a bank deposit offer with
favourable interest rate while in Lithuania the Bank offers deposit service to legal entities. Lithuania-and
Latvia are the Bank's markets for fi nancing activities.

The Bank's strategy for the coming years is.to focus on the Lithuanian market: for financing activities,
aiming for asset diversification through products and clients, The key financing segment will remain
small and medium sized énterprisés.

Furthermore, the Bank plans to diversify its source of funding by starting to accept deposits in Spain
and Netherlands through the Raisin deposit platform, as well as begin to cdllect_-deposits' through
Check24 deposit platform in Germany.

3. Information on research and development activities
During January-November 2022, the Bank invested in develepment of an automatic credit decision
system. In December 2022, the project was terminated.

4. Strategy implementation

The implementation of the Bank’s strategy is based on the supply -of services tailored to small and
medium sized enterprisés, the needs of which are: not satisfied by traditional commercial banks. The
Bank's competitive advantage is based on the key client-focused principles:

« Flexible business financing solutions;

» Fast and smooth processes from decision-making to client financing;

+ High expertise in the segment of small and medium sized businesses:.

5. Organizational structure

The Bank's organizational structure. meets the' specifics of the.business model on the provision of

banking services and implementation of advanced international business practices..
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The Supervisory Council consists of four independent members who are not related o the Bank in terms
of employmerit relations.

The Supervisory Council appoints the Bank's Management Board which currently consists of the Head
of Administration, the Deputy Head of Administration, the Head of Baltic Business, and the Chief
Technology Officer. The Management Board makes day-to-day executive decisions and implements the-
strategy of the Bank, implements risk management framework.

The Bank has established the Audit Committee, which- members are -the same as those of the
Supervisory Counil.

6. Governance -'struc'iure

The Bank's management bodies are the General Meeting of Sharehiolders, the Supervisory Coungil, the
Management Board, and the Head of Administration.

The Heads of the Bank are the members of the Supervisory Council, members of the Management
Board, the Head of Administration, the Deputy Head of Administration, and the Head of the: Internal

Audit.

‘The General Meeting of Shareholders is convened annually; no later than four months after the end

of the financial year. Extracrdinary general meetings of shareholders may also be convened. The
General Meeting of Shareholders has an exclusive right to:

» Amend the Articles. of Assaciation of the Bank, except for the exceptions set by legal acts;

- Elect and revoke the members of the Bank’s Supervisory Council;

« Elect'and revoke an audit company to perform the audit of the annual financial stateiments; set
the conditians for payment for audit services;

=« Approve the set of the Bank’s annual financial statements, distribution.of profit {loss), formation,
use; reduction, and annulment of reserves:

+ Increase and reduce authorised capital except for the exceptions set by |_tégislati_on‘:

+ Adopt other decisions provided in the Articles of Association of the Bank.

The General Meeting of Shareholders may also decide on other issues if, foliowing the legislation and
the Bank’s Articles of Association, it is not assigned to other Bank’s bodies and if these are not the
functions of the Bank’s management bodies.

The Bank’s Supervisory Council is a collegial _su_perviso_ry body supervising the Bank’s activities. The
Supervisory Coungil is headed by its chairman. The Bank's Supervisory Council, consisting: of four
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meinbers, is elected by the General Meeting of Shareholders for a peried of four years. Four

independent members have been elected to the current Supervisory Council. The functions-of the

Supervisory Council:

Elects the Bank's Management Board members and removes them from office. If the activities
of the Bank are loss-making, the Supervisary Council must consider whether the Management

Board members are it for the position;

Supervises the activities of the Management Board and of the Head of Administration;
Adopts the working regulation of the Bank’s Supervisory Council;

Approves the Bank’s activity plans;

Ensures that effective internal controls and internal audit systems are in place;

Forms the Audit Commitiee and approves its reglilations;

Submits suggestions and feedback te. the- General Meeting of Shareholders on the Bank’s

activity strategy, the set of the Bank’s annual financial statements, draft appropriation of profit

{losses), and the Bank's annual management report as: well as on the activity of the Head of
Administration;

Submits suggestions to the Management Board and: the Head of Administration to revoke their

decisions if they are in coriflict with laws and other legal acts, the Bank's Articles of Association,

or decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders;

Considers and makes decisions .on other matters which, based on the legislation, the Bank's

Articles of Association.

The Bank’s Management Board is a collegial management body of the Bank consisting of four

members. |t manages the Bank and is liable for the Bank’s financial services. The Management Board

function is regulated: by the Working regul__a_tion_s of the Management Board. The Management Board

members are elected, removed from office, and supervised by the Bank's: Supervisory Councit. The

Bank's Management Board considers and approves:

The Bank's annual managément repoit;

The Bank’s ‘governance structure and employees® positions as well as positions to which
employees are recruited with the approval of the Management Board or by the procedure of
competition;

Regulations of the Bank’s divisions;

Regulations of the Bank's Credit Commiittee;

Determines the information which is considered the Bank's commercial secret and- confidential
information.

14
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In addition, the Management Board elects (appoints) and removes from office the Bank's- Head of

Administration and Deputies,

The Management Board makes the following decisions:

Decisions on the Bank’s becoming the founder or participant of other legal entities;
Decisions on the establishment of the Bank’s branches, representative offices,.and other distinct
Bank's branches or en terminating their activities;

Decisions on the investment, disposal or lease of non-current assets the carrying amount of

which ‘exceeds 1/20 of the Bank's authorised capital {calculated separately for each type of

transaction};

Decisions on the pledge and mortgage of non-current assets the carrying amount of which
exceeds 1/20 of the Bank’s authorised capital {total amount of transactions);

Decisions on sureties or guarantees for obligations- of other persons the amount of which
exceeds 1/20 of the Bank's authorised capital;

‘Decisions on the acquisition of-‘non-current assets for the price exceeding 1/20 of the Bank’s

authorised capital;

Recisions on the issuance of non-convertible bonds;

Approval of the.Management Board's working regulation;

Decisions on other matters which, under the legislation and under the Bank's Articles of
Association, must be considered and decided by the Management Board.

The Management Board implements the decisions taken by the General Meeting of Shareholders and

by the Supervisory Council. The Management Board analyses and assesses the information submitted

by the Head of Administration on;

Implementation of the Bank’s activity plans;’

‘Organization of the Bank's activities;

Financial position of the Bank;

Results of economic activities, income and expenses, aceounting date of stock-taking and other

-changes in assets,

In addition, the Management Board analyses, and assesses the Bank's set of annual financial

statements and draft appropriation 6f profit (loss) and submits them to the Supervisory Council and the

General Meeting of Sharehalders. Also, the Managemerit Board decides on. other matters if; based on

the legislation or the Bank’s Articles of Association, they are riot assigned to other Bank's bodies. The
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Management Board is responsible for the timely convening and organising of the General Megting of
Sharaholders.

The Head of Administration is the sole management body of the Bank-orgariizing the Bank’s activities
and performing -actions necessary to perform the Bank’s functions, implement the decisions of the

Bank's bodies, and ensure the Bank's activities.

The Head of Administration acts on behalf of the Bank and is entitled to unilaterally conclude
“transactions except for the exceptions set by laws, the Bank's Articles.of Association, or the decisions
of the Bank's bodies.

Committees of the Bank

The following committees are established in the Bank: the Credit Commiittee, the Audit Committee, the

‘Assets and Liabilities Committee and the Debt Management Committee.

The Credit Managemernit Committee is established by the Management Board. The Credit Committee
is responsible for the supervision of the Bank's credit risks. The main responsibilities of the Debt
Management Committee are examining client credit requests, deciding on ‘financing, and setting
financing conditions.

The Debt Management Gommittee is chaired by the Head of Credits.

The Audit Committee is established by the Supervisory Council. The Audit Comimittee is responsibie
for gverseeing the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control, risk-management, and internal audit
-systems, legal compliance of the Bank’s operations, and the process of financial reporting within the
Bank.

‘The members of the Audit committee are those of the Supervisory Council. The Chairman of the
Supervisory Gouncil is also appointed.as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee is established by the Management Board. The Assets and
Liabilities Committee is responsible. for implementing the liquidity strategy of the Bank, its assessing
anti making relevant decisions.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee is chaired by the Chief Financial Officer.

The Debt Management Committee is established by the Management Board. The Debt Management
Committee is responsible for monitoring overdues of the customers, making and implementing

decisions with regard to customers’ overdues and debt recovery.

The Debt Management Committee is chaired by the. Workaut Manager.
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7. Risk management and internal controls

The detailed information on the Bank’s main risks and their management framewark is provided in the
section 22 of the Notes 1o the Financial Statemenits.

The Group acknowledges that every employee of the organization is responsible for the effectiveness
of risk management and ifiternal control framewark.

To manage risks, the Bank uses the three lines model. The three lines model contributes to a better
understanding of risk management and control by clarifying the different roles and duties expected from

-each employee,

The three lines madel distinguishes three_groups (__br lines) participating in effective risk management:
»  Functions assuming and managing risks;
+ Functions responsible for risk control;

+ Functions responsible for the independent assessment of the efficiency of risk management
processes andinternal control framework.

First line comprises all risk-owning functions at the Bank. The first line includes functions such as Sales,
Operations, Credits, Treasury, Finance, Legal and IT, which are considered. risk owners.

Second line comprises the Bank's risk monitoring and supervision functions. It comprises of Risk
management function, Compliance function, Information security function, Data protection function, and

Prevention of money laundering, terrorist financing and financial crimes function.

Risk management function, steered by the Chief Risk Officer, is responsible for;

. .Ca’rrying out the supervision and control of the risk management process at the Bank. It also
actively provides.guide[ines_ and support to other structural divisions of the Bank in implementing
and mainiaining & strong and sustainable. risk culture;

s Identification, control and analysis of all the main risks which affect or may affect the Bank's
activities. The Risk management function shall also control whether other structural divisions of
the Bank ensure appropriate oversight of their main risks;

+  Assessmerit-of any potential risks that may-arise during the implementation of new products of
material amendments of them and determination how the_y-ca_n influence the Bank's overall risks
and risk profile.

Chief Risk Officer is' accountable to the Management Board and reports directly to-the Deputy of Head
of Administration.
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Compliance function is responsible for behavioural and compliance risk, except for fraud-related risk,

money-laundering prevention, fight against terrorist financing and sanctions control (but including risks
of modern slavery, fight against bribery and corruption). It is responsible for the detection, assessment
and monitoring of the Bank's behavioural and compliance risks and implementation of control
framework, as well as for the submission of reports on the Bank's compliance with the effective laws
and other regulations to the Bank’s management bodies. This includes: i) assistance to the first line in
identifying existent and potential behavioural and compliance risks and implementation of control
measures to mitigate these risks; and ii) monitoring and testing of the efficiency of control measures to

prevent behavioural and compliance risks from occurring or mitigating them.

Head of Compliance is accountable to the Management Board and by administrative procedure to the
Deputy Head of Administration.

The Prevention of money laundering, terrorist financing and financial crimes function bears the same

responsibilities as the compliance function but is responsible for the control and prevention of financial
crimes and external fraud-related risks as well as for the prevention of money-laundering and terrorist
financing and for sanctions control.

The Money Laundering Reporting Officer is accountable to the Management Board and by
administrative procedure to the Deputy Head of Administration.

Third line is related to the Internal Audit function, which is independent from the first and second lines.
Internal Audit function assess:

o Appropriateness of the Bank’s governance framework;

» Adequacy and compliance of the existing policies and procedures with legal and regulatory
requirements and with the risk appetite and strategy of the Bank;

¢ Adequacy, quality and effectiveness of the controls performed and the reporting done by the
business units and the risk management and compliance functions.

The Internal Audit Manager is accountable to the Audit Committee which holds meetings at least
quarterly. The Audit Committee accounts to the Bank's Supervisory Council at least once a year.
8. Employees and remuneration policy

Information on the Bank’s employees and remuneration policy is provided in the Notes of the Financial
Statements and the Bank's Risk Management and Capital Adequacy Report
(https://www.payray.bank/It/financial-reports-It/).
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9. Information on the positions held by managers.

Infarmation on other functions of the Head of Administration, the Management Board members and the

members of the Supervisory Council is presented in the table below:

e e e - - : e S
. Duties at the Other
Manageme o ' R . o
o i atll S company companies/organi i Duties.at other
Name, surname n;_g‘?gl;"f Meain employment PayRay Bank, | sations where | company/organi
. aﬁg UAB UAB holds managerial. sation
Bank, positions
PayRay Bank, _ PayRay SIA
Renato La Manageme | UAB (304862948, | Head of (40203260896, Member of the
Fianza nf Board Lvivo st. 25, ~ { Administration ! Duntes st. 3, Board
Vilnius, Lithuania}) Riga)
PayRay SIA
(40203260896, | ey o e
_ _ PayRay Bank, . o Board
_gt';‘:;‘;%a(sunm Manageme | UAB (304862048, onep“tV Head ; Riga)
31/03/2023) | "t Board b‘l’m :‘.*Lﬁghania) Administration | Anahata buveins,
s, LA V8| (305720752, |
Zemaites st. 5-22, | Head
Vilniug, Lithuania)
PayRay Bank, PayRaySIA |
Paulius JokEas Managemie | UAB (304862948, ; Head of Baltic : (402032608986, | Member of the
nt Board Lvivo st, 25, | Business Duntes st. 3, Board
Vilnius, Lithuania) Riga)
_ PayRay Bank, Chief
Gianluca Manageme ; UAB (304862948, Technolo i
Balducci nt Board Lvivo st. 25, Ofﬁc er ay -
Vilnius, Lithuania) | ~
GGLIF, UAB
UAB Joldija (L3f_1582t5227-56~ CEO
(133865639, vivo st. 25,
kg _ -1 Vilnius, Lithuania
| K, | Craimanr e
Gintautas Supervisor ania) - i the
Galvanauskas' | y Council o : Supervisory : i
Chairman of the Fe UAB Energia
Board, Head of Council futura
Development ?g;uggstésazt-- Board
» haunas,
Lithuania) _;
............................... - P : i et . S ook
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Manageme Duties at the- Other
. N S _ ‘company companies/organi | Duties af other
Name, sumame nltqugséof ‘Main employment PayRay Bank, | _sations where | companylorgani
B anlf U}{B UAB helds managerial sation
S positions
V4| Futbolo
klubas
(304984471, Member of the
J.Basanaviiaus | Board i
st. 26, Vilnius, P !
Lithuania)
UAB Sejico
303173811, e
_E(ruost_o. st, 2T, Member of the
Kedainiai dist., | Board
Lithuania)
Raft Capital
Management;
UAB (Gedimino Partner
av. 50, Vilnius,
Lithuania)
I(lF:rlosgém 129 AB Listuvos
Giuseppe Memberof | Golezinkefial - -
Kestutis Sfiuzas | SUPEVISOT | pioroarinist, 19, | Supervisory | 10053842, - Chalrman of the
y Council Peruaia. lialy o GeleZinkelio st. Board
erugia, ltaly) - Council 16. Vilnius
Chief Executive Lithuania)
Officer
Fitodenta, UAB | CEO
. - (305460265,
Satimed UAB Raudondvario rd.-
?03408?1327 148, Kaunas,
\aune st a7, — Lithuania! .
Tomas Supervisor | Utena, Lithuania) g{?rg?&ggf ) President,
Andrejauskas y Council '-_Hgad_of CoﬂnCiI ry Lithuanian BIO 5(E.!'Z__t1_alg1.1an of the |
Business o (126374821, oard;
Development, Baléikonio st. 3,
Partner Vilriius, Lithuania)
4 ] E
...................................................................... B ORI A ok P R
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Manhageme Duties at the Other
N o e gl N . company. campanies/organi | Duiies at other
Name, surname nitj-:pg); ‘_3_'f Main emiploymernit PayRay Bank, satioris:where ‘companyforgani
5 amf AR UAB holds managerial sation
ank, UA positions
Bioremedium, | Chief
UAB (305913986, | Technology
Universiteto st. 3, [ Officer
Vilnius, Lithuania).
_ ) R Member of
Roberto Pollara ..Supewls:or - Supervisory . -
'y Council Councit

* Mindaugas Stasionis ceased to perform his duties as a member of Board and a head of
administration at PayRay Bank UAB from 31 March 2023,

10. _Signiﬁcan_t-. events after the end of the reporting period

Ongoing Russia’s war in Ukraine and inflationary pressures continue to weigh on econiomies worldwide,
resd[ting in slowed economic activity. Global growth is projected to. decelerate sharply in 2023,
especially in the euro area. The latest economic data in Germany and Lithuania revealed that both
countries’ gross domestic product contracted by 0.4% and 0.5% respectively during Q4 2022,

In order to fight high inflation, the European:Central Bank has initiated monetary policy tightening. By
the end of 2022, the European Central Bank's rate of main refinancing operations was 2.5% (compared
to 0% at the start of _the-.year_)_a'nd it was increased to 3.0% on 8th February 2023. Moreover, the
European Central Bank. has increased the key interest rates by additional 50 basis points on 16th of
March while indicating that further interest rate decisions will be determined by the assessment of the
inflation outlook.

The sudden increase. of Euribor rates driven by the European Central Bank's monetary policy had a
positive.impact on the Bank’s financial results in Q1 2023. However, in the light of an uncertain economic
outlook, the Bank closely monitors the economic situation and its loan portfolio performance. Taking into
account the abovementioned circumstances, the Bank. continuously reviews and adapts its financing
guidelines for new credit origination. |
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In January 2023, the Bank of Lithuania started a non-routine inspection of the Bank. The focus of the

inspection is credit risk management, liquidity management, interest rate risk management, and

governance of the Bank. The results of the inspection are expected to be issued in Q2-Q3 2023,

Annual report designed in 27 April, 2023.

PayRay Bank, UAB

Head of Administration

Renato La Fianza
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Notes 2022 2021
EUR EUR

Interest income calculated using effective interest method 6 11 163 501 5832870
Interest expenses 6 (3 091 111 (648 446
Net interest income 8072 91
Commission income 6 145 228 9537
Commission expenses 6 (33 553) (14 7?5;
Net commission income (expenses) 111 675
Other operating income 6 280 426 82 481
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries 22 (3 000 000) -
Credit loss allowance 17,22 (602 588) (643 441)
Payroll expenses 7 (4 963 337) (2 852 602)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of intangible 7 (615 989) (234 204)
Administrative expenses 7 (3 624 989) (1635 248)
Finance costs 11 (5 051 S‘%}
Profit (loss) before tax (4 347 {
Income tax expense 8 151 712 13 512
Profit (loss) for the year (4 195751)
Other comprehensive income - .
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax {4195 751) {93 996)
Earnings (losses) per share (0 {0)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.

Director /j,’/;‘—
Renato La Fianza ] 27 April 2023

T —————{signaturéy (date)

Authorised person of BDO auditas ir apskaita /,?7
Z

Aurelija Janulaityté

: 27 April 2023
(signature) (date)

CEFo | ; :
ponfrnice Porim A)A_q__.“_.‘ll/b, 2% AlaL 2023
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Statement of financial position
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Assets

Cash on hand and balances with central banks
Securities issued by governments

Loans to customers and factoring receivables
Investments into subsidiaries

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax asset

Other financial assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Customer deposits

Lease liabilities

Payables

Provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities
Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Equity

Issued capital
Retained eamnings

Profit (loss) not recognized in statement of profit and loss and other

comprehensive income
Total equity
Total equity and liabilities

Notes

17
16
12,13
14
10

11

15
16

19
11
20
22
20

18
18

25

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.

Director
Renato La Fianza

Authorised person of BDO auditas ir apskaita
Aurelija Janulaityté

CEO
NoNERL e  POouT

2022 2021
EUR EUR
66 398 817 54 522 842
22790 253 ”
186 680 732 122 907 274
2500 2002 500
1589 285 587 115
274 676 112 814
308 660 238 175
527 981 376 269
209 422 108 899
248 297 28 867
279 030 623 180 884 755
241 916 268 141 560 543
311 345 239 623
6517 887 4529 966
18 226 137 404
313 590 148 549
249 077 316 146 616 085
36 424 791 36 424 791
(6 351 872) (2 156 121)
(119 612) -
29 953 307 34 268 670
279 030 623 180 884 755
April 2023
date)
' 27 April 2023
|(signature) {date)

L1

Dl 2L 10 s e




PayRay Bank, UAB
Bank code: 304862948, Lvivo st. 25-702, Vilnius, Lithuania

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Profit (loss) not
recognized in .
Issued statement of profit ::::;:ez Tokal equity
capital and loss and other (lm? -
comprehensive
Income S
EUR EUR EUR EUR
As at 31 December 2020 36 424 791 - (2 062 125) 34 362 666
Profit (loss) for the year - - (93 996) (93 996)
As at 31 December 2021 36 424 791 - (2 156 121) 34 268 670
Profit (loss) for the year - - {4 195 751) (4 195 751)
Profit (loss) not recognized in statement of profit and
loss and other comprehensive income - 119 612 - (119 612)
As at 31 December 2022 36 424 791 119 51!} (6 351872)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.
Director //%‘
Renato La Fianza A cin £-27 April 2023
= M (date)
Authorised person of BDO auditas ir apskaita /f/l/
Aurelija Janulaityté <F 7 27 April 2023
(signature) (date)

c Fe
PoagNi e Pouh

L. a2 an

I 2.22
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2022

— 2022 2021
EUR EUR

Profit (loss) for the year (4 195 751) (93 996)
Operating activities
Credit loss allowance 17, 22 602 586 643 441
Interest income 6 (11 163 501) (5832 870)
Interest expenses 6 3091111 648 446
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of intangible ¢  9,10,11 871063 239 168
Impairment of investments in shares of subsidiaries 14 3 000 000 -
Change in deferred tax 8 (151 712) (13 512)
Other non-cash transactions elimination 35 178) 77 740
Total adjustments to operating activities 3 455 631 (4 237 587)
Working capital adjustments

Net change in loans granted 12,13 (63 972 489) (86 087 993)

Changes in other financial assets 15 (100 523) (77 534)

Changes in other assets (219 430) (307 369)

Changes in customer deposits 19 98 914 759 135 335639

Change in trade payables 20 1881031 1692 685

Changes in other liabilities 20 165 041 271 098
Total changes in assets and liabilities of operating activities 36 668 389 50 826 526
Interest received 10 649 803 5477 598

Interest paid §1 650 145) (201 440)
Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Investments in subsidiaries 14 (1 000 000) (1 752 500)
Acquisition of securities issued by governments 16 (22 733 488) -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 9,11 (491 380) (266 022)

Acquisition of intangible assets 10 (1657 544; (197 262;
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities

Lease payments 1 71722 106 836
Net cash flows from/used in financing activities 71 122 106 836
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11 875 975 49 662 153
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period 17 54 522 842 4 860 689
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 17 66 398 817 54 522 842

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements.

Director j
Renato La Fianza NP 27 April 2023
/u }) (date)
f"’
Authorised person of BDO auditas ir apskaita 1
Aurelija Janulaityté f}o 27 April 2023
! (signature) (date)

cto {?'// 2()\ 71 AL 2023
Donegmiee PO\-r\h 1




PayRay Bank, UAB
Bank code: 304862948, Lvivo st. 25-702, Vilnius, Lithuania

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2022
1. General information
PayRay Bank, UAB (hereinafter — "the Bank"), code 304862948, is a private limited liability company registered in Lithuania. On 18 September 2019, Vilnius factoring

company, UAB name was changed to PayRay, UAB. The Company was registered as Vilnius factoring company, UAB, on 25 June 2018. The registered office is
located at Lvovo st. 25-702, Vilnius, Lithuania,

On 3 December 2019, the European Central Bank together with the Bank of Lithuania granted to the Bank a full banking license. The license secures a right to the
Bank to collect deposits. The Company was converted to a bank during Q3 2020. PayRay Bank, UAB finally converted to a bank on 15 October 2020,

The principal activity of the Bank is provision of financial services. The Bank provides finance for small and medium-sized enterprises {SMEs) and collects deposits
from natural and lenal persons.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the shareholder of the Bank was 2404 S.A., Bank code B224715, registered at 76, Grand Rue, L - 1660 Luxembourg, Luxembourg.
The shareholder holds 100% of shares in the Bank.

In 2022 and 2021, the Bank had shares of one class held by one shareholder, 2404 S.A. Ulimate controlling persons are individuals holding 50% of shares each.

In 2020, the Bank established a company PayRay SIA. The Bank became the parent company of PayRay SIA owning 100% of the share capital of PayRay SIA.
PayRay SIA is the Bank's subsidiary. The accounting policies of the subsidiary are based on the same International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as the
Bank's. Financial data of PayRay SIA is included in the consolidated financial statements prepared by the Bank.

In 2021, the Bank established a company PayRay Estonia OU. The Bank became the parent company of PayRay Estonia OU owning 100% of the share capital of
PayRay Estonia OU. PayRay Estonia OU is the Bank’s subsidiary. The accounting policies of the subsidiary are based on the same Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as the Bank's. Although commercially inactive in 2022, financial data of PayRay Estonia OU is included in the consolidated financial statements
prepared by the Bank.

On 25 March 2022, the Bank completed the partial acquisition of business from Technology Srl. The software development business was purchased as "transfer of
going concern” and under the framework of “business combination under common control” as both parties had the same sole shareholder.

PayRay Bank, UAB prepares separate consolidated financial statements.
As at 31 December 2022, the average number of the Bank's employees was 89 (31 December 2021, 49).

The shareholder of the Bank has a statutory right to either approve these separate financial statements or not approve them and require a new set of financial
statements to be prepared.

The Bank's financial reporting year coincides with a calendar year.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Lithuanian Law on Corporate Reporting, the Lithuanian Law on Accounting and
Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union.

The financial statements are presented in euros and all values are rounded to the nearest whole number, except where otherwise indicated,

3. Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The financial statements were prepared on a going concern basis. As at the date of approval of the financial statements, there were no indications that the Bank will not
be able to continue as going concern, and the Bank's aclivities are not restricted.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are reasonable under the current circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are
revised or in any future periods affected.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is
included in the following sections of accounting policies:
- Section ‘Financial Assets'. Assessment of the business model within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asst
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.
- Section 'Impairment of Financial Assets'. Assumptions establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition, determining methodology for incorporating forward-locking information into measurement of ECL and selection and approval of models used to
measure ECL.

k's activities under the incentive financial instrument of Zemeés Ukio Paskoly Garantijos Fondas to secure the liquidity during the period of the outbreak of COVID-
19

The Bank's management estimates that the Bank acts as a financial intermediary channelling funds from Zemés Okio Paskoly Garantijos Fondas under the incentive
financial instrument “Loans to Secure the Liquidity of Undertakings Active in the Production, Processing and Marketing of Agricutural and Fishery Products During the
Period of the Qutbreak of COVID-19". _

The basis for such management estimate is the agreement with Zemés Ukio Paskoly Garantijos Fondas, which defines the Bank as a financial intermediary that lends
funds received from Zemés Ukio Paskoly Garantijos Fondas without taking final decisions on the granting of funds to borrowers, therefore the Bank does incur any
financial or non-financial liability for defaulting borrowers.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions (continued)

As the Bank acts as a financial intermediary when granting loans under the said incentive financial instrument, the funds received by borrowers from the Fund and
loans repayable by borrowers under the instrument are not recorded in the Bank's accounts and disclosed in the Bank's financial statements, under assets or liabilities.

Bank's activities under the incentive financial instrument of Zemés Ukio Paskoly Garantijos Fondas to secure the liguidity during the period of Russian military

agaression against Ukraine

The Bank’s management estimates that the Bank acts as a financial intermediary channelling funds from Zemés Ukio Paskoly Garantijos Fondas under the incentive
financial instrument "Loans to Secure the Liquidity of Undertakings Active in the Production, Processing and Marketing of Agricultural and Fishery Products in
Response to Russian aggression against Ukraine”.

The basis for such management estimate is the agreement with Zemés Okio Paskoly Garantijos Fondas, which defines the Bank as a financial intermediary that lends
funds received from Zemés Okio Paskoly Garantijos Fondas without taking final decisions on the granting of funds to borrowers, therefore the Bank does incur any
financial or non-financial liability for defaulting borrowers.

As the Bank acts as a financial intermediary when granting loans under the said incentive financial instrument, the funds received by borrowers from the Fund and
loans repayable by borrowers under the instrument are not recorded in the Bank’s accounts and disclosed in the Bank's financial statements, under assets or liabilities.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 is included in the following notes:

- Section ‘Impairment of Financial Assets'. Assumptions on the impairment of financial instruments determining inputs into the ECL measurement model, including
incorporation of forward-looking information.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Details on taxes are disclosed in Note 8.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General accounting principles

In the process of handling its accounting records and financial reporting the Bank follows general accounting principles:

The bank's principle. In accordance with this principle, the Bank shall be considered as a separate unit of accounting and the Bank's financial statements shall reflect
only its assets, equity and liabilities.

Principte of going concemn. Financial statements shall be prepared based on the assumption that the Bank will continue its operations indefinitely and is not going to be
liquidated or its operations shall not be suspended.

Principle of consistency. In order to ensure that the data of the financial statements for one period can be compared with data from other periods, the accounting rules
and methods should remain unchanged for a sufficiently long period. If certain accounting policies are changed during or after a reporting period, (i) comparative
information about financial results that would have been achieved with previous accounting policies, and (ji) information on current financial results must be provided in
the explanatory notes to the financial statements.

Principle of accrual. Economic transactions and other events of the Bank shall be recorded in accounting when they occur and shall be presented in financial
statements of such periods, imespective of the receipt or payment of cash. Financial statements drafted applying the accrual principle shall inform their users not only
about the past events but also about obligations to pay or receive cash in the future.

Principle of periodicity. The accounting activities of the Bank are divided into financial years or other reporting periods and the financial statements are prepared for that
reporting period. Financial statements of the Bank shall be prepared on the basis of data as at the last day of the reporting period.

Principle of prudence. A conservative approach to decisions or transactions should be adopted, which implies prudent assessment of the outcome of the decisions and
transactions, and ensures that revenues or assets are not overestimated and costs or liabilities are not underestimated.

Principle of comparability. Revenue eamed during the reporting period shall be related to the expenses incurred to eam such revenue. Costs incurred in respect of
different periods shall be allocated to the periods during which the Bank will earn the respective revenue. The accounting policies selected by the Bank shall provide for
the application of new methods of accounting without violating the principle of comparability of financial statements. All financial statements shall provide disclosures
covering the current reporting year and at least one previous financial year (comparative information),

Principle of neutrality. The accounting information of the Bank shall be presented impartially. Presentation of accounting information should not affect the decisions
taken by users of accounting information and should not result in predetermined outcome,

Principle of substance over form. In recording transactions and other events of the Bank, the economic substance should take precedence over formal requirements or
legal form,

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Bank's financial statements for 2022 are set out below.
Financial assets

R nition and initial measurem

The Bank initially recognises factoring arrangements, loans and advances on the date on which they are originated.

The Bank recognises a financial asset in its statement of financial position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A
financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or disposal.
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Classification
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at (i) amortised cost (i) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or {jii} fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL),

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model with the objeclive to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI,

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVPL.

In addition, on initial recognition, the Bank may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model asse t

The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed and information is provided to management,

The sole objective of the Bank’s business model is o hold ts to collect contractual cash flows. The Ban's business model remained unchanged during 2022,

The information considered for determining the objective of the business model includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular, the Bank's strategy focuses on eaming contractual
interest income;

- the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Bank's management based mainly on credit portfolio volume and interest income eamed;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business madel (and the financial assets held within that business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed
are typical for the activity of holding assets and collecting contractual cash flows.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest' is defined as consideration for the time
value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g.
liquidity risk and administrative costs) as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPP|, the Bank considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial

Derecognition of financial assets

The Bank derecognises financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from this asset has expired or when the right to receive the agreed cash flows
from this financial asset has been transferred during the transaction, i.e. all risks and rewards of ownership of financial assets are transferred. Any interest in such
derecognised financial assets that is created or retained by the Bank is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the camying amount of the asset (or the camying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.

If the Bank transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to service the financial asset for a fee, it shall
recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract.

If a transfer of a financial asset does not result in derecognition because the Bank has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of hip of the transferred
asset, the Bank shall continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and shall recognise a financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent
periods, the Bank shall recognise any income on the transferred asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Bank recognises loss allowances for ECL (expected credit loss) on the following financial instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:

- financial assets that are debt instruments (incl. factoring arrangements);

The Bank measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for which they are measured as 12- month ECL:

- debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date;

- other financial instruments (other than lease receivables) on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial recognition (Stage 1).

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial
instruments for which a 12-month ECL is recognised are referred to as ‘Stage 1 financial instruments’ (expected credit loss is recorded).

Life-time ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument. Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is
recognised but which are not credit-impaired are referred to as 'Stage 2 financial instruments’ (credit risk is significantly increased).

Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is recognised and which are credit-impaired are referred to as ‘Stage 3 financial instruments' {in default).

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, They are measured as follows:

- financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive);

- financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows;

- undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Bank if the commitment is drawn down and
the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive;

- financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts thal the Bank expects to recover.

ignificant incri in credit risk (S|
When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Bank considers reasonable and

supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Bank's historical experience and expert credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an exposure by comparing:

- the remaining lifetime probability of default {(PD) as at the reporting date; with

- the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment
expectations),

The Bank uses three criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk:

- quantitative test based on changes in PD;

- qualitative indicators; and

- a backstop of 30 days past due.

Credit risk grades

The Bank allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is determined to be predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced
credit judgement.

Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of default. These factors vary depending on the nature of the exposure
and the type of borrower.

Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default occurring increases exponentially as the credit risk deteriorates so, for example, the difference
in risk of default between credit risk grades A1 and A2 is smaller than the difference between credit risk grades C2 and C3.

Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade on initial recognition based on available information about the borrower, Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring,
which may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk grade. The monitoring typically involves use of the following data.
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Information obtained during periodic review of customer files — e.g. audited financial statements, management accounts, budgets and projections, payment and other
information available from external registers. Examples of areas of particular focus are:

-gross profit margins, financial leverage ratios, debt service coverage, compliance with covenants, quality of management, senior management changes;

-data from credit reference agencies, press articles, changes in extemal credit ratings;

-quoted bond and credit default swap (CDS) prices for the borrower where available;

-actual and expected significant changes in the political, regulatory and technological environment of the borrower or in its business activities;

-payment record - this includes overdue status as well as a range of variables about payment ratios;

-utilisation of the granted limit, timeliness of payments;

-requests for and granting of forbearance;

-existing and forecast changes in business, financial and economic conditions.

Generating the term structure of PD

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of PD for exposures. The Bank collects performance and default information about its
credit risk exposures analysed by characteristics and by type of product and borrower as well as by credit risk grading. For some portfolios, information purchased from
external credit reference agencies is also used.

The Bank uses own assumptions and expert judgements to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these
are expected to change as a result of the passage of lime. The number, diversity and complexity of credit exposures was limited in 2021-2022, therefore, the Bank
uses simple modelling of PD in a homogeneous portfolio assessing exposures assigned to Stage 2 and 1 on collective, and those assigned to stage 3 on individual
basis,

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The Bank assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition at each reporting date. Determining whether an increase in credit risk is
significant depends on the characteristics of the financial instrument and the borrower. What is considered significant differs for different types of lending. As a general
indicator, credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition if, based on the Bank's quantitative modelling:

Quantitative criteria for determination of SICR using credit risk grades

Exposures in Stage 1

SICR automatic trigger for moving the financial |The Bank's customer's are grouped into five risk categories:

instrument (credit exposures) across Stages 1. Low risk;

2. Moderate risk;

3. Increased risk;

4. High risk;

‘5. In-default.

The customer is moved to a higher stage:

- if the credit risk grade increase by more than one risk category, e.g. the customer’s risk exposure changes from Low
risk category to Increased risk category;

- if the customer's risk category becomes material (i.e. the customer's risk is attributed to high risk or default risk
categories);

- if a significant loss events become known and, in the assessment of the Bank's Debt Management Committee or
Risk Management Department, this may lead to a deterioration of the Customer’s credit quality (the Bank is informed
of the initiation of reorganisation or bankruptcy process against the company).

The credit risk may also be deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition based on qualitative factors linked to the Bank’s credit risk management
processes that may not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis. This will be the case for exposures that meet certain heightened risk
criteria, such as placement on a watch list. Such qualitative factors are based on its expert judgment and relevant historical experiences.

As a backstop, the Bank considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is more than 30 days past due, Days past due are
determined by counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received.

The Bank considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs when liabilities towards the Bank are more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by
counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been recsived,

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to initial recognition, then the loss allowance on an instrument retums to being
measured as 12-month ECL. Some qualitative indicators of an increase in credit risk, such as delinquency or forbearance, may be indicative of an increased risk of
default that persists after the indicator itself has ceased to exist. In these cases, the Bank determines a probation period during which the financial asset is required to
demonstrate good behaviour to provide evidence that its credit risk has declined sufficiently. When contractual terms of a loan have been modified, evidence that the
criteria for recognising lifetime ECL are no longer met includes a history of up-to-date payment performance against the modified contractual terms. Usually, probation
period of 3 months or any longer period that the Bank's Credit Committee deems appropriate Is used. The forbome loans are subject to a longer probation period.

K3 )
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The Bank monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify a significant increase in credit risk through regular reviews to validate whether:

- the criteria can be used to identify a significant increase in credit risk before the exposure defaults;

- the criteria mismatches the timing when an asset becomes past due for up to 30 days;

- the average time between determining a significant increase in credit risk and the occurrence of default is reasonable;

- typically, exposures are not moved directly from 12-month ECLs to credit-impaired ECLs; there is no reasonable change in loss allowance for the exposure to be
moved from 12-month ECLs (Stage 1) to lifetime ECLs (Stage 2).

D n fault

The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full, without recourse by the Bank to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
- the borrower is more than 90 days past due on any material credit obligation to the Group;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will restructure the asset as a result of bankruptcy due to the borrower's inability to pay its credit obligations.

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Bank considers indicators that are:

- qualitative: e.g. breaches of covenant;

- quantitative: e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer to the Bank; and
- based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Bank incorporates forward-looking information into both the assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and the measurement of ECL.

The Bank has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for portfolio of financial instruments and, using an analysis of available data, has
estimated relationships between macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses.

To assess whether the credit risk has increased significantly, the Bank relies on a wide range of information, including forward-looking information, In its internal
meodels, the Bank relies on macroeconomic indicators such as GDP and unemployment rate forecasts and actual metrics. Indicators of the respective countries are
applied to individual markets, I.e. separately for Lithuania and Latvia,

Therefore, the information based on quarterly changes of actual and forecasted GDP and unemployment rate has been selected as a proxy for evaluating forward-
looking macroeconomic impact on credit risk of the borrowers. Considering lagging nature of the indicator, combination of actual and forecasted data allows to smooth
the fluctuations and avoid measurement biases.

To mitigate credit risk on financial assets, the Bank benefits intensively from guarantees issued by different institutions. The largest part of the portfolio is covered by
guarantees from the public sector. Factoring transactions are additionally covered by insurance as a risk mitigation measure,

However, the Bank always applies borrower-specific credit analysis and constant monitoring of the exposure, Therefore, all borrower-specific signs of possible future
increase in credit risk are incorporated into client’s PD on a regular basis.

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:
-probability of default (PD);

-loss given default (LGDY);

-exposure at default (EAD).

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and
EAD.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. Since, as at 31 December 2022, the Bank did not have sufficient historic date to reliably estimate individual
LGD values, it has decided to use LGD of 45% for all corporate borrowers in accordance with Article 161 of the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR).

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Bank derives the EAD from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the
current amount allowed under the contract and arising from amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount at the time of default.

For lending and factoring commitments, the EAD is not calculated since all contractual terms of lending and factoring commilments are revocable. The Bank can cancel
them with immediate effect but this contractual right is not enforced in the normal day-to-day management, but only when the Bank becomes aware of an increase in
credit risk at the facility level. This longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk management actions that the Bank expects to take, and that serve to
mitigate ECL. These include a reduction in limits or entire cancellation of the facility.

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for Stage 1 financial assets, the Bank measures ECL considering the risk of default over the
maximum contractual period (including any borrower's extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk. The maximum contractual period extends to the date at
which the Bank has the right to require repayment of an advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.
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Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified, or an existing financial asset is replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties of the
borrower, then an t is made of whether the financial asset should be derecognised and ECL are measured as follows:

- if the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included In
calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing asset;

- if the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the
existing financial asset at the time of its derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are discounted
from the expected date of derecognilion to the reporting date using the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

-impaired fi ial

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI, and finance lease receivables
are creditimpaired (referred to as ‘Stage 3 financial assets’). A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

-significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

-a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

-the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that the Bank would not consider atherwise;

-it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

-the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties,

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of
not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no ather indicators of impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or
more is considered credit-impaired even when the regulatory definition of default is different.

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

-financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the grass carrying amount of the assets;

-loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision;

- where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Bank cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component
separately from those on the drawn component: the Bank presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction
from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn companent is presented as a provision;
- debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in the statement of financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair
value. However, the loss allowance is disclosed and is recognised in the fair value reserve.

Write-offs

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. This is generally the case when the Bank determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level. Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income under impairment loss on financial instruments. Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Bank's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recorded when the Bank assumes a legal obligation to pay cash or settle other financial assets under an existing contract. Financial liabilities
according to their measurement are classified as: measured at amortised cost and measured at FVPL (this category includes financial liabilities held for trading). The
fair value of term deposits is measured by discounting expected cash flows using current market interest rates for similar financial instruments with similar terms.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified held for trading are included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liability is derecognised when it is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Classification or

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrum

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences remaining share in the Bank's assets after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Bank are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Bank's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Bank's own equity instruments.
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Amortised cost

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount.

Fair value measurement principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date
in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date, The fair value of a liability reflects the effect of its non-
performance risk.

When one is available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. If there is no quoted price in an
active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen
valuation technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price, i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or
received. If the Bank determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that used only data from observable markets, the financial instrument is initially
measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised
in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data or the
transaction is closed out.

Accounting of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets shall be attributed to non-current where the following conditions are met: an asset is an identifiable non-monetary
asset without physical substance, the Bank intends to use it for a period longer than one year, the Bank reasonably expects a flow of economic benefits from such asset
in future periods, the Bank can reliably measure the acquisition costs of the asset, risk related to the asset has been transferred to the Bank and the acquisition cost of
the asset exceeds the minimum cost of property, plant and equipment set by the Bank, i.e, EUR 500 (in 2021: EUR 500).

Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Depreciation is charged on the assets on a straight line basis
to allocate the cost to their residual values over useful lives.

Intangible assets are measured initially at acquisition cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated amortisation (except for goodwill) and any accumulated
impairment loss.

Development costs are capitalised and recognised in the statement of financial positions, when the Bank controls the resulting asset, and if it is probable that future
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Bank/Group and the cost of asset can be measured reliably. In other cases, development costs are
expensed as they are incurred,

Depreciation and amortisation rates (in years) for non-current assets

Group of non-current assets Method Rate {in years)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture linear 6
Computers and communication equipment linear 3
Assets other than listed above linear 4
Intangible assets

Software (computer) linear 3

Core banking software linear 5
Acquired rights linear 3

Other intangible assets linear 4

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Bank assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Bank estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset. An asset is impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. If either of these amounts
exceeds the asset's camrying amount, the asset is not impaired.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the camying amount that would have been determined, if no
impairment loss had been recognised, net of amortisation or depreciation.
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Bank as a lessor

The receivables from the financial lease agreements are recognised in net present value of the minimum lease payments, from which the payments of principal
received have been deducted, plus unguaranteed residual value at the end of contract. Lease payments collected are allocated between repayment of principal and
financial income,

Financial income is recognised over the rental period based on the pattem reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the financial
lease. Initial service fees collected at issuance are included into the calculation of effective interest rate and lessor's net investment. Lessor’s direct expenses, related to
the contract, are part of effective interest rate and are booked as decrease of leasing income over the period of leasing contract. Allowances for lease receivables are
presented on the respective line of statement of financial position at negative value.

The lease receivable from the client is recognised in the statement of financial position as of the moment of delivering the assets being the object of the agreement to
the client. In case of transactions, in which the assets being the object of the agreement having a long delivery term have not yet been delivered to the client, the
payments received from the lessees under these agreements are recognised in the statement of financial position under other liabilities. The amounts paid by the Bank
for the assets under lease agreements not yet delivered are recognised in the statement of financial position as prepayments to suppliers under other assets.

Bank as a lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. IFRS 16
requires the lessee to recognise a right of use asset and an associated liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated and the liability accrues interest. This results in a
front-loaded pattern of expense for most leases, even when the lessee pays constant fixed annual lease payments,

At inception of an amangement, the Bank determines whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, the Bank separates payments and other consideration required by the arrangement into those
for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If the Bank concludes for a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the
payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset; subsequently, the liability is reduced as
payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate.

Leases of property , plant and equipment that transfer to the Bank substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The leased
assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset,

Assets held under other leases are classified as operating leases and are not recognised in the Bank’s statement of financial position,

The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value' assets (e.g., personal computers) and short- term leases (i.e., leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less).

At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee recognises a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset).

Lessees are required to separalely recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of- use asset. Lessees are required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments).

The lessee generally recognises the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as
an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease,

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense
is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability at the end of each
reporting period.

When measuring lease liabilities for leases that were classified as operating leases, the Bank discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate and
deposit interest rate.

Income
The Bank's income consists of income from interest, commissions, insurance fees, agreement fees and late payment interest arising from financing and factoring
services under the contract with customers.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method. Loan origination fees for loans issued to customers are deferred (together with related
direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective yield of the loans. Fees, commissions and other income items are generally recorded on an accrual
basis when the service has been provided. Interest income on late payment represents interest on delayed payment. Interest on late payment is recognised when it is
highly probable to receive it.
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4, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Revenue from contracts with customers caonsists primarily of service-related fees and is reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
under commission income. Revenue is recognised when the performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer. The
fotal consideration received is allocated to each performance obligation, depending on whether they are satisfied either at a point in time or over time. Commission
income for asset management and custody services is generally recognised as revenue over time, as services are performed. Where fees are variable, l.e.
performance-based fees, revenue is recognised when it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount will not occur. Lending fees that are not an integral
part of the effective interest rate are recognised as commission income. Lending and deposits fees are recognised both over time and at a point in time, depending on
when the performance obligation is satisfied. Expenses for bought service directly attributable to generating commission income for service provided are reported as
commission expenses.

The Bank's other income include income from acquisition of securities issued by govemments, demand deposits in banks and income from intra-group transfer pricing
transactions. The income is recorded in the Bank’s statement of profit or loss or other comprehensive income under other operating income. Income is recognized on
accrual basis when eamed,

Expenses

Costs are recognised based on the accrual and matching principles in the reporting period during which related income is eamed, imespective of the time the money
was spent. Costs are divided into personnel expenses, impairment loss on receivables (related to operating activities of the Bank and intended for eaming income),
administrative expenses and finance costs (interest on loan received from shareholders, deposit interest and lease liabilities). Costs that are not related to income
eamed during the reporting period, but expected to generate future economic benefits, are recorded in accounting and presented in financial statement as assets. The
portion of assets which is intended for eaming income in future periods shall be recognised as expenses when the associated income is earned.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Euros at the Euro and foreign exchange rates announced by the European Central Bank and the Bank of
Lithuania in accordance with the Law on Accounting at the date of the fransaction. Resulting exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits, such as salaries, paid absences, performance-based cash awards and social security costs are recognised as expenses during the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of the previous year. It is measured using tax rate enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Under the Law on Corporate Income Tax of the Republic of Lithuania, the taxable profit was subject to 15% income tax rate in 2022 and 2021, Tax expenses reported
in these separate financial statements is based on the calculation made by the management in accordance with tax legislation of the Republic of Lithuania. From 2020,
the tax rate of 15% is applicable to commercial banks operating in Lithuania. Tax losses can be carried forward for indefinite time. Such transfer of losses shall be
terminated if the Bank ceases to camry out the activities that caused such tax losses to emerge, unless the Bank ceases its activities because of reasons beyond its
control, Only up to 70% of current year's taxable profits can be offset against tax losses carried forward.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes, except
differences relating to the initial recognition of assets or liabilities which affect neither accounting nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax is calculated using rates that are expected to be applied on temporary differences when they are reversed, using tax rate currently enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized.

Equity and reserves

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options or to the acquisition of a business are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds,

The net financlal result (profit or loss) received during the financial year must be distributed not later than within 4 months after the end of the financial year, by the
decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders approving the annual financial statements.

A legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under legislation of the Republic of Lithuania. An annual transfer of 5% of net profit is compulsory until the total of the reserve
reaches 10% of the share capital. Legal reserve cannot be distributed for the payment of dividends. The reserve may be used only for covering the losses.
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5. Application of new and amended International Financial Reporting Standards

During the reporting period, the Bank adopted new standards and amendments to existing standards and their interpretations, which are relevant to the activities and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022,

(a) Standards, their amendments and interpretations effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022,

IFRS 3 Business Combinations; IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as well as Annual
Improvements 2018-2020 (Amendments) (all issued on 14 May 2020 with effective date of 1 January 2022)

The IASB has issued narrow-scope amendments to the IFRS Standards as follows:

* IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Amendments) update a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting without changing the accounting
requirements for business combinations.
* IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (Amendments) prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from
selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or
loss of the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
* IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Amendments) specify which costs a company includes in determining the cost of fulfilling a contract
for the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous.

* Annual Improvements 2018-2020 make minor amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, IAS 41 Agriculture and the lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16 Leases

These amendments are effective in European Union for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. The management assessed that these
amendments has no material impact on these financial statements.

{b) Standards issued but not vet effective and not early adopted and their amendments

New standards, amendments and interpretations that are not mandatory for reporting period beginning on 1 January 2022 and have not been early adopted when
preparing these financial statements are presented below:

IFRS 17 and IFRS 4: Deferral of the effective date of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 for insurers (issued on 25 June 2020, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023)

The amendments to IFRS 17 are effective, retrospectively, for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application permitted. The
amendments aim at helping companies implement the Standard. Overall, the amendments are designed to reduce costs by simplifying some requirements in the
standard; make it easier to explain financial performance; and ease transition by deferring the effective date of the standard to 2023 and by providing additional relief to
reduce the effort required when applying IFRS 17 for the first time.

The amendments to IFRS 4 change the fixed expiry date for the temporary exemption in IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts from applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, so
that entities would be required to apply IFRS 9 for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

The management has assessed that these amendments will not have any impact on the Bank'’s financial statements.
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (issued on 18 May 2017 with effective date of 1 January 2023),

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 with earlier application permitted if both IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments have also been applied. In its March 2020 meeting the IASB decided to defer the effective date to 2023. IFRS AT
Insurance Contracts, establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts issued. It also requires similar
principles to be applied to reinsurance contracts held and investment contracts with discretionary participation features issued. The objective is to ensure that entities
provide relevant information in a way that faithfully represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements 1o assess the effect that
contracts within the scope of IFRS 17 have on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

This IFRS will not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the Bank as insurance services are not provided.

IAS 12 Income taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments) (issued on 7 May 2021 with effective date of 1
January 2023).

Under the amendments, the initial recognition exception does not apply to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. The amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. with earlier application permitted. The management has not yet
evaluated the impact of the implementation of these amendments.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Praclice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting policies (Amendments) (issued on 12 February 2021 with
effective date of 1 January 2023).

The amendments effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments provide guidance on the
application of materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. In particular, the amendments to IAS 1 replace the requirement to disclose ‘significant’
accounting policies with a requirement to disclose ‘material’ accounting policies. Also, guidance and illustrative examples are added in the Practice Statement to assist
in the application of the materiality concept when making judgements about accounting policy disclosures. The management has not yet evaluated the impact of the
implementation of these amendments.
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5. Application of new and amended International Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments) (issued on 12 February 2021 with effective
date of 1 January 2023),

The amendments introduce a new definition of accounting estimates, defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty.
Also, the amendments clarify what changes in accounting estimates are and how these differ from changes in accounting policies and corrections of errors. The
amendments become effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period, The management has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of
these amendments.

Amendments to IAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Cumrent or Non-Current (issued on 23 January 2020 with effective date of 1 January 2024, but not before it is
adopted by the EU).

The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the statement of financial position, debt and
other liabilities with an uncertain settlement date should be classified as current or non-current. The amendments affect the presentation of liabilities in the statement of
financial position and do not change existing requirements around measurement or timing of recognition of any asset, liability, income or expenses, nor the information
that entities disclose about those items. Also, the amendments clarify the classification requirements for debt which may be settled by the Company issuing own equity
instruments. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The management has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of these amendments.

Amendments to IAS 1 *Non-current Liabilities with Covenants” (issued on 31 October 2022 with effective date of 1 January 2024, but not before it is adopted by the
EU):

Modify the requirements introduced by Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current on how an entity classifies debt and other financial liabilities as current or
non-current in particular circumstances: Only covenants with which an entity is required to comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a liability as
current or non-current. In addition, an entity has to disclose information in the notes that enables users of financial statements to understand the risk that non-current
liabilities with covenants could become repayable within twelve months. The amendments are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, The
amendments are applied retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 and earlier application is permitted. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. The
management has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of these amendments.

Amendments to IFRS 16 “Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback™ with amendments that clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback
transactions that satisfy the requirements in IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale (issued on 22 September 2022 with effective date of 1 January 2024, but not before
it is adopted by the EU).

Amendments to IFRS 16 “Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback” require a seller-lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilities arising from a leaseback in a way
that it does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The new requirements do not prevent a seller-lessee from recognising
in profit or loss any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of a lease. The amendments become effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024 with earlier application permitted. A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by
the EU. The management has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of these amendments.
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6. Int I and exp 2 isslon I and and other operating i

2022 2021
Income: EUR EUR
Interest income calculated using effective interest method 11 163 501 5832 870
Interest expenses (3091 111) (648 446)
Customer assessment services 3300 6100
Other operating income 277 126 76 381
Total revenue 8 352 816 5 266 905

2022 2021
Commission income and expense: EUR EUR
Commission income 145 228 9537
Commission expenses (33 553) {14 775)
Total ission i and exp 111 675 (5 238)
7.P 1 exp » depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of Intanglible asset and administrative expenses

2022 2021
Wages and salaries: EUR EUR
P 1 exf {for employees registered in Lithuania) 3492268 2717619
Pi | exp (for employ gistered in other ies), including accrued vacation 1027 298 =
Social rity tributi (for employ g d in Lithuania) 61559 55281
Social security contributions (for employ gil in other tries) 233773 -
Vacation accruals 148 439 79 702
Total personnel expenses 4 963 337 2 852 602

2022 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of intangible assets EUR EUR
Amortization of intangible assets 397 327 136 427
Depreciation of property, plant and equif t 58 181 15 030
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 160 481 82 747
Total depreciation of property, plant and equip t and ization of intangible assets 615 089 234 204

2022 2021
Administrative expenses: EUR EUR
Non-deductible VAT 584 793 112252
Rental costs of IT equipment for workplaces 524 364 -
Software maintenance 352817 137 313
Legal services expenses 287 886 138 346
Administrative expenses of talian branch 210 347 -
Cost of external data systems used 162 940 50 594
Deposit insurance 157 385 22003
Bank charges 135 844 80 474
Insurance expanses 135702 85075
Contract services B2 475 26 795
Accounting services 69 757 87974
Utilities 69311 31422
Business trips 62 646 12 659
Representation 59 764 40 401
Recruitment services 48 807 102 471
Membership fee for bank association 46 207 41 450
Adverlising expenses 42 967 18170
Tel icati p 41077 10 881
Lease of assets and equipment 34 589 223536
Audit expenses 34 045 41 255
Vehicle maintenance and fuel costs 24 185 16 749
Training, conference costs 23 098 30428
Information syst p 21200 128 271
Sponsorship expenses 20 000 5300
A g softy i 18 467 6 880
Equipment acquisition costs 16123 2680
Internal g procedure costs 9536 8714
P tion of money laundering services 5700 23 980
Office maintenance - 5423
Public relations - 21898
Other expenses 332 946 121 854
Total administrative expenses 3 624 989 1635 248
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8. Taxes

The Bank had no current income tax charge for 2022 and 2021.

Reconcillation between tax loss and financial loss for the year ended 31 December is, as follows:

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:
2022 2021
EUR EUR
Profit (loss) before tax (4 347 463) (107 508)
1 tax calculated using the statutory tax rate in Lithuania 15% (652 119) (16 126)
Tax effect of:
Non-deductible expenses 506 143 4045
Non-taxable income (5 736) (1431)
Total t year | tax exj (151712) (13 512)
Adjustment to income tax of the previous year = -
Income tax expenses reported in the statement of profit or loss {151 712) (13 512)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities:
2022 2021
EUR EUR
I (d ) In deferred tax assets from tax loss 527 981 376 269
Total defamd tax asset 527 981 376 269
Calculation of income tax is based on requi ts of the Lithuani lat ion on ion. As of 31 D ber 2022 and 2021, the fard i tax rate in Litr

was 15%. As at 31 December 2022, the Bank recognised 100% deferred rauc assets for tax losses and temporary difference related to provision. The recognition is based on the
Management's assumption that according to a three-year plan, the entire amount of deferred tax will be utilised in the next year,

9. Property, plant and equipment
Furniture ﬁm _ Total

EUR EUR
Initial cost:
Balance as at 1 January 2021 87 348 - 87 348
Increase over the year 5052 44 062 50 014
Balance as at 31 December 2021 93 300 44 062 137 362
Increase over the year 41 540 223644 265 184
Written off to depreciation expense (29 615) - (29 615)
Reclassification - {44 062) (44 062)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 105 225 223 644 328 869
Balance as at 1 January 2021 (8518) - (8518)
Depreciation charge for the year (15 030) 2 {15 030)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 (24 548) - (24 548)
Depreciation charge for the year (22 378) {15 657) (38 035)
Depreciation charge for on-balance sheet assets acquired (1080) - (1080)
Assets written-off 9 469 - 9 469
Balance as at 31 December 2022 {38 537) {15 657) (54 194)
Net book value as at 1 January 2021 87 348 - 87 348
Net book value as at 31 December 2021 68 752 44 062 112 814
Net book value as at 31 December 2022 66 689 207 987 274 676
There was no impai of property, plant and equipment as at 31 D ber 2022 and 2021.

There were no property, plant and equipment pledged.
There are no fully depreciated property, plant and equipment, which are still in use.
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10. Intangible assets

Computer software Total
EUR EUR
Initial cost:
Balance as at 1 January 2021 526 890 526 890
Additions 197 26: 197 262
Balance as at 31 December 2021 724 15. 724 152
Additions 1007 302 1007 302
Written off to amortisation expense (63 448) (63 448)
Reclassification 44 062 44 062
In progress 672 552 672 552
Balance as at 31 December 2022 2 384 620 2384 620
Balance as at 1 January 2021 (610) (610}
Amortisation charge for the year (136 427) (136 427)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 (137 037) (137 037)
Amortisation charge for the year (351 823) (351 823)
Written off to amortisation expense 17 938 17 939
Amortisation charge for on-balance sheet assets acquired {324 415) {324 415)
Bal asat31D ber 2022 {795 334) (795 334)
Net book value as at 1 January 2021 526 890 526 890
Net book value as at 31 December 2021 587 115 587 115
Net book value as at 31 December 2022 1580 285 1569 265
11. Right-of-use assets
The Bank has valid office premises, vehicles lease ag t
Right-of-use assets
Office premk Vehicl Total
EUR EUR EUR
Balance as at 1 January 2021 60 175 49 703 109 878
Increase over the year 165 295 50713 216008
Depreclation charge for the year (64 126) (23 585) (87 711)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 161 344 76831 238175
Increase over the year 188 661 37 535 226 196
Depreciation charge for the year {117 268) 38 443, (155 711)
Net book value as at 31 December 2022 232 737 75923 308 660
Lease liabilities
Office premises Vehicles Total
EUR EUR EUR
As at 01 January 2021 80 951 51 835 132 786
Increase over the year 165 295 50713 216 008
Payments (85 592) (18 616) (104 209)
Change in right-of-use assets - (4 963) (4 963)
As at 31 December 2021 160 654 78 969 239 623
As at 01 January 2022 160 654 78 969 239 623
Increase over the year 188 661 37 535 226 196
Payments (126 665) (32 576) (159 241)
Change In right-of-use assets 10 994 (6 226) 4 768
As at 31 December 2022 233 643 77702 311 345
As at 31 December, interest expense on (finance) lease liabilities were as follows:
2022 2021
Interest expense on lease liabilities EUR EUR
Lease of office premises (3 402) (1933)
Vehicle lease interest expenses 1649 (1747
Total lease llability interest expenses 505 3
As at 31 December the future minimum lease pay ts under operating leases were payable as follows:
2022 2021
EUR EUR
Within 1 year 163 840 108 610
From 1to 5 years 147 505 131013
311 345 239 623
2022 2021
Maturity analysis. Contractual di d cash flows EUR EUR
Within 1 year 163 840 108 610
From 1 to 5 years 147 505 131013
Total discounted lease llabilities as at 31 December 2022 311 345 239 623
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12. Loans to customers

2022 2021

Loans to customers: EUR EUR
Loans granted to customers 126 853 953 77 967 646
Lease receivables 18 221 659 836 189
Loans to related parties 9116 395 5000 000
Accrued interest on loans to customers 558 220 332145
Accrued interest on joans to related parties 201375 70 500
Accrued interest on lease 95 535 331
Loss allowance for loans granted (-) (1412 961) (822 066)
Loss allowance for lease (-) (106 267) (1.806)
Total 153 527 909 83 382 9@9-
Accrued income from loan contract fee (617 644) (170 301)
Total of loans granted to clients 152 910 265 83212 63!=

In 2022, the Bank granted a loan of EUR 5,000,000 to SIA PayRay. In 2022, the Bank set off part of the loan amounting to EUR 883,605 under the supplement No LV-2021-11-10-1 to

the agreement dated 16 December 2022.

13. Factoring receivables
Carrying of factoring ivabl pri ivables under different factoring agreements. The Bank has three types of f; g ag nts: with with fimited
and factoring agi ts. These amounts are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9.

2022 2021
Factoring receivables: EUR EUR
Receivables under f ing g it 33780373 39 785 686
A d i in under factoring 36 975 41973
Loss allowance for factoring receivables (-} (46 881) (133 023)
Total factoring receivables 33 770 467 694 636
14, Invest ts into subsidiark
As at 31 D ber, the i isted of the following

2022 2021
Carrying amount of investments EUR EUR
Invesiment into PayRay SIA 3 000 000 2000 000
Impairment of iInvestment into PayRay SIA (-) (3 000 000} -
Investment into PayRay OU 2 500 2500
Total ts in subsidiar} 2 500 2002500

The Bank's Investments into shares of PayRay SIA and PayRay OU:

o i Share of issued ca as at 31 December
Into Country m
PayRay OU Estonia 100%
PayRay SIA Latvia 100%
15, Other financial assets
2022 2021
Other financial assets: EUR EUR
Value of receivables (collateral) 40035 24 450
Other receivables 169 387 84 449
Total other financlal assets 209 422 108 899
-3
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16. Securities issued by governments and other assets

2022 2021
Securities issued by governments: EUR EUR
Securities issued by governments, nominal value 22 733 488 o
Accrued interest on securities issued by govemments 103516 -
Loss allowance for securilies issued by govemments ;46 751) -
Total securities issued by governments 22 -
ISIN Buy-out date Coupon rate Co Nominal value
XS2168038417 2025-06-05 0.25% Republic of Lithuania 6 880 217 |
X$2114767457 2025-10-02 0,00% Republic of Poland 4 908 500
S10002104246 13/02/2026 0,00% Republic of Slovenia 4 B83 000
XS1295778275 23/08/2025 1,38% Republic of Latvia 3 060 057
LT0000630097 2025-04-08 1,30% Republic of Lithuania 3001714
Total: = = 22733 488
2022 _ 2021
Other assets: EUR EUR
EU VAT receivable 13154 902
Receivable from accountable persons 5665 1650
Other receivables 9764 -
Other accrued income 141585 -
Other deferred expenses 78 130 26 314
Total other assets 248 298 28 866
17. Cash and cash equivalents
2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents: EUR EUR
Balances with the central bank 43724 244 48 437 977
Balances with commercial banks 2744 475 6088 967
Term deposit in commercial bank 20 000 000 -
Loss allowance for balances and term deposits in banks (-) (69 802) (4102)
Total cash and cash equivalents 66 398 817 54 522 842

The cash and cash equivalents of the Bank are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position. The cash and cash equivalents of the Bank are held with commercial

banks that are rated al least Baa2 to Aaa based on Moody's Credit ratings.
18, Issued capital

The Bank's issued capilal as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 consisted of 36,424,791 ordinary registered shares with the par value of EUR 1 each (EUR 36,424,791 ). All issued

shares were fully paid. A share shall not be divided into parts. All shares issued by the Bank are uncertificated ordinary registered shares.

A legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under legislation of the Republic of Lithuania. An annual transfer of 5% of net profit is compulsory until the total of the reserve reaches 10% of
the share capital. As at 31 December 2022, the Bank's accrued loss totalled EUR 6,351,872 and therefore no allocations to the legal reserve were made (in 2021: accrued loss tolled

EUR 2 156 121).

Below is the draft of the profit (loss) appropriation project for the financial year ended 31 December 2022:

Name Amount, EUR
(a) Profit {loss) brought forward from the previous reporting period at the end of the cument
rting period (2,156,121)
(b) Net profit (loss) for the reporting year (4,185,751)
(c) Transfers from reserves 0
Iid Owners' contributions to cover the Bank’s losses (if shareholders decided to cover total 0
or partial loss)
(a) Total distributable profit {loss) (6.551 B72)
{f) Amount of the profit allocated to the legal reserve 1]
{g) Amount of the profit allocated to the reserve for the acquisition of own share 0
{h) Amount of the profil aliocated to the other reserves 0
(i} Amount of the profit allocated for payment of dividends, of which, where applicable,
dividends paid to shareholders during the reporting period for the period shorter than the 0
fi ial year
(i) Amount of profit allocated to annual pay (b ) to the bers of the Board, 0
bonuses to employees and other purposes
(k) Retained eamings (loss) carry forward to the next reporting period (6,351,672)

19, Customer deposits

Customer deposits:

Deposits from natural persons (GER)

Interest d on deposits from natural [ (GER}

Deposits from lagal p

Interest d on deposits from legal p LT

Total

Defarad issions on deposit

Total customer deposits

A ge annual deposit i rate is set at 1.38% | ge is provided for all the dep

with the requirements of legal acts and the amount of which does not exceed EUR 100 thousand.

2022 2021
EUR EUR

204 400 617 118 401 718

1747 058 372 486

35 990 000 23 000 000

142 236 75 842

242 279 911 141 850 047
(363 643) (289 504)

241 916 268 141 560 543

= ;

its from natural persons that are the object of d
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20. Payables and other liabilities
2022 2021
Payables: EUR EUR
Facloring payables 3 062 086 3232642
Payables to Zemés Ukio Paskoly Garantijy Fondas 814 767 70407
Employment-related liabilities 655 679 250 321
Other payables 644 111 384 301
Security deposits received 611838 341 864
Vacation accruals 288 316 203736
Payable to the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Lithuania 256 872 -
VAT payable 182623 45200
Prapayments received 1495 1495
Total payables 6517 887 4 529 966
2022 2021
Other liabilities: EUR EUR
Accrued expenses:
Commissions 131074 -
Cust g ysh 51850 -
Congultations 48 530 70000
Audit of financial statements 27 000 14 050
Personnel management services 13441 38 500
Other 41695 25 999
Other liabilities, total 313 590 148 549
21, Related party t tl
During the year ended 31 D ber the following t i i with related parties:
Entities of the same ultimate beneficial owners
2022 2021
Purchases of goods and services EUR EUR
Purchases of goods and services 153 694 436 745
Total 153 694 436 745
2022 2021
Sales of goods and services EUR EUR
Sales of goods and services 137 151 -
Interest income 130 875 70 500
Total 268 026 70 500
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting pericd in relation to with entities of the same ultimate beneficial owners,
2022 2021
Payables and Is (purch of goods and services) EUR EUR
Entities of the same ultimate beneficial owners 2 955 128 302
Total 2955 128 302
2022 021
Receivables and accruals (sale of goods and services) EUR EUR
Entities of the same ultimate beneficial owners 9764 -
Total 9764 -
2022 2021
Loans to subsidiaries (incl. d interest) EUR EUR
Loan to PayRay SIA 9116 395 5000 000
Interest accrued 201 375 70 500
Total 9317770 5 070 500

Repayment dates of loans granted to PayRay SIA: under agreements No LC20210300000172 and No LC20211200000565 — 12 March 2023, No LC20220500000704 — 31 May 2024,

All the loans are subject to a fixed interest.
On 29 March 2023, the Bank granted a new loan of EUR 5,412,202 to Payray SIA: under agreement No LC20211200000861, repayment date is 31 March 2024.

Key management personnel
There were no loans granted to the key g f | during the fi lal year.
R tion of key g tp | (there were 13 managers in 2022 and 14 in 2021) was as follows:
2022 2021
EUR EUR
R (incl. b ) 1235559 1179179
Total 1235 559 1179179
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22. Risk management
In its activities, the Bank is exposed to the following risks:

~capital risk;

~Credit risk;

«[ityuidity risk;

~operational risk.

Risk management framework

The Bank uses three lines of defence model for risk management. The Bank's management has overall resp ibility for the blist t and oversight of the Bank's risk

management framework. The Bank employs Chief Risk Officer, who is responsible for identification, monitoring of risks and imph ing risk policies and practices in

the Bank,

The Bank's risk g fr rk is designed to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Bank, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence

to limits. The risk management policies and sy are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Bank's activities. The Bank's management, through
ining and g dards and p dures, aims to develop a disciplined and tructive control envi t in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Bank’s Intemal Auditor oversees how management monitors compliance with the Bank's risk management framework and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Bank.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Bank's capital management are to ensure that the Bank complies with externally imposed capital requirements and that the Bank maintains healthy
capital ratios in order to support their business and to maximise the shareholders' value. Capital is managed by complying with legisiative requirements and following the activity plans
set by the Bank's managing bodies. In addition, the level of assumed risks is assessed not only In current situation, but also idering future prospects and the effect of possible
adverse factors,

During the reporting period, the Bank complied with all prudential ratios. Ratias applicable to the Bank:

- Common Equity Tier | capital ratio — 8%, Common Equity Tier | capital ratio of PayRay Bank, UAB was 25.11%.

- Tier | capital ratio 10.5% (a capital conservation buffer of +2.5% was set above the regulatory mini capital requi t of 8%} (as from 1 October 2023, the capital requirement
increased to 11.5% due to countercyclical capital buffer requirement of 1%). Tier | capital ratio of PayRay Bank, UAB was 25.11%.

- Leverage ratio —3.0%. As at 31 D ber 2022, the k ge ratio of PayRay Bank, UAB was 10.09%,

- Large exposure requirement — 25% of the Bank's Tier | capital. As at 31 December 2022, the Bank's issued loans to one client or a group of cted clients ] 16.34% of
the Bank's Tier | capital.

Interest rate risk

The key source of interest rate risk at the Bank is interest rate risk and revaluation risk. The risk arises due ta mi h bet the repurch and fuation terms of assets and
liabilities resulting from the change in yield curve or resulting from interest rate options which may have an effect on fulure cash flows or due to differing reactions of yield curves fo
changes in interest rates. For the calculation of interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB), the Bank uses net interest income sensitivity and sensitivity of economic value of equity
(DEVE).

In 2022, the Bank conducted siress testing of IRRBB by analysing sensitivity of net interest income and DEVE. The impact on the DEVE in the Bank was assessed against all six
tandard ios referred to in the European Banking Authority (EBA) guidelines.

As al 31 December 2022, the analysis of changes in interest rate risk in the banking book was as follows (EUR thousandj:

Overnight Less than 1 month 1-3 th 3-6 i 6 ths — 1 year Total
'z"p‘:“;’“" intereat ratos [+ 1325 000 (52 881) 105 167 58 825 (422 215) 1013 896
I;s:;sased Interest rates (-+ {1 325 000) 52 881 (105 167) (58 825) 422215 {1013 896)
As at 31 December 2021, the analysis of changes In interest rate risk in the banking book was as foliows (EUR thousandj;

Overnight Less than 1 month 1-3 months 3-6 months 6 months - 1 year Total
'z"p‘:?”‘“ ntgnest rales (+ 1021 000 (124 000) 13000 (218 000) (243 000) 449 000
2::]’““" ieesgtaton (- (1 021000) 124 000 (13000) 218000 243 000 (449 000}
Credit risk
Credit risk Is a risk that the Bank will incur financial losses, if a debtor or other counterparty falls to fulfil its liabilities. Credit risk arises principally from the Bank's loans, factoring
amrangements and other advances to customers and banks, For rigk g it reporting purp , the Bank i and il all el ts of credit risk exposure — e.g.

the risk of default of an individual debtor and sector risk.
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22. Risk management (continued)
Credit risk management

The Bank created the Credit Committee and Debt Management Commitiee for the oversight of credit risk. Chief Risk Officer (second line), reporting to the Board of the Bank, is
responsible for managng the Bank's credit risk, hdudlng the following:

«limiting P to terp \ ies and by bond issuers;
developing and mai g the Bank's p for g ECLs. This includes p for:
olniﬁai apprwal. mgular vaiﬁaﬁun and hack-lesling of the modeis used;
g and in credit risk; and

churporahon of ionvard-loolqng information.
+ reviewing compliance of credit portfolio with agreed exp fimits, including those for selected industries and product types. Regular risk reports on the cradit quality of Bank'
porlfchs are pm\rlded to the Bank's Board and Supervisory Council. These include reports containing estimates of ECL allowances.

g advice, g and specialist skills to the Bank's employees to p te best practice throughout the Bank in the management of credit risk.
HeadOfCredils{fwsiBw)isaccouMahiewlreBanksBuudand tributes to risk g t, including:
+ formulaling credit policies ¢ g collateral regs credit t, risk grading and reporting, do itary and legal proced and compliance with any regulator

and statutory raqtiremanis:
+gstablishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities. All authorisation limits are allocated to the Cradrt Commlt!ae
+ reviewing and assessing credit risk: Chief Risk Officer assesses all credit exposures before facilities are committed to cust: and reviews of facilities are subject t
the same review process.

Credit risk grades and corresponding probabilities of default:

Risk grade PD from PD to

Al 0.00% 0,19%
Low risk customers A2 0,20% 0,29%

A3 0.30% 0.49%

B1 0,50% 0,69%
Medium risk customers B2 0,70% 1,09%

B3 1,10% 1.68%

[+3] 1,70% 2,58%
Increased risk customers c2 2,60% 3,79%

C3 3,80% 5,69%

D1 5,70% 8,39%
High risk customers D2 B8,40% 12,19%

D3 12,20% 17,39%

E1 17,40% 24,19%
C with default indicati E2 24,20% 32,59%

E3 32,60% 100,00%
Diversification of credit portfolio as at 31 December 2022:

Outstanding, net
(EUR thousand)  Cvutstanding, net (%)

Industry sector
G, Wholesale and retail trade 31265 20,36%
L. Real estate transactions 29 244 19,05%
K. Financing and insurance activities 18 426 12,00%
C. Manufacturing 16 266 10,59%
F. Construction 15999 10,42%
H. Transport and storage 13031 8,49%
A. Agriculture, forestry and fisheries 9279 6,04%
N. Administrative and support activities 8759 571%
J. Information and communication 3733 243%
D. Supply of electricity, gas, vapour and air conditioning 3616 2,36%
M. Professional, scientific and technical activities 2010 1.31%
E. Water supply 693 0,45%
R. Arts, entertainment and tion 362 0,24%
Q. Human health and social work activities 312 0,20%
S. Other services 300 0,20%
|. Accommodation and food service aclivities 129 0,08%
P. Education 114 0.07%
Total 153528 100,00%




PayRay Bank, UAB
Bank code: 304862948, Lvivo st. 25-702, Vilnius, Lithuania

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 D ber 2022

22, Risk management (continued)

Diversification of credit portfolio as at 31 D ber 2022 (factoring receivables) was as follows:

Industry sector

G. Wholesale and retail trade

H. Transport and storage

N. Admi ive and supp tiviti

C. Manufacturing

F. Construction

D. Supply of electricity, gas, vapour and air conditioning
M. Professional, scientific and technical activities

Total

Diversification of credit portfolio as at 31 December 2021:

Industry sector

G. Wholesale and retail trade

L. Real eslate transactions

H. Transport and storage

C. Manufacturing

A. Agriculture, forestry and fisheries

K. Financing and insurance activities

D. Supply of electricity, gas, vapour and air conditioning
M. Professional, scientific and technical activities
N. Administrative and support activities

F. Construction

Q. Human health and social work activities

B. Mining and quarrying

J. Infe tion and ication

I. Accommodation and food service activities

E. Water supply

R. Arts, entertainment and recreation

P. Education

Total

Diversification of credit portfolio as at 31 D ber 2021 {factoring ivables) was as follows:
Industry sector

G. Wholesale and retail trade

H. Transport and storage

N. Administrative and support activities

€. Manufacturing

F. Construction

M. Professional, scientific and technical activities

A, Agriculture, forestry and fisheries

Total

Impairment of financial assets

The Bank has six types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit loss model:
+factoring and other receivables, which are subject to all types of factoring arrangements;
«ldans granted;

*lsase arangements;

Bonds (held-to-maturity);

*deposits in other banks;

*Cash and cash equivalents.

Outstanding at
nominal value, EUR  Outstanding, net (%)
EUR
18 579 55,01%
5892 17.45%
4 285 12,69%
3261 9.66%
1082 3,23%
438 1,30%
223 0,66%
33770 100,00%
Qutstanding at
nominal value, EUR  Outstanding, net (%)
EUR
20 682 24 80%
13 246 15,80%
10 678 12,69%
9261 1,11%
9110 10,93%
7092 8.51%
4613 5,53%
2945 3,53%
2582 3,10%
2218 2,66%
573 0,68%
127 0,15%
102 0,12%
96 0,12%
87 0,10%
a7 0,04%
34 0,04%
83 383 T00,00%
Outstanding at
nominal value, EUR  Outstanding, net (%)
EUR
21662 54,57%
9504 23,94%
3467 B,73%
3242 8,17%
1685 4,24%
133 0,34%
2 0.01%
39695 100,00%
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22. Risk management (continued)
Maximum credit risk exposure
The following table pi ts the Bank's credit risk exp before cansidering any collateral held. The i f to credit risk equals the maximum amount that
would have to be paid upon customer request.
Outstanding loan
Maximum credit risk  Gross outstanding It Maxi cradit Grosk jing In Ouw?um
exposure in 2022 (EUR under the loan risk exposure ot
in 2022 (EUR) thousand) tin  in2022(EUR) 2021 (EURthousand) et ooy
2022 (EUR) n 2028 (EUR)
Balances with the central bank 43 740 845 43 740 845 - 48 535 654 48 535 654 -
Loans 144 229 043 136 729 942 7499 101 104 679 833 83 370 292 21 309 541
Finance lease 19 431 504 18317 194 1114 310 2403490 836 518 1566 972
Factoring 33817 348 33817 348 - 39 827 660 39 827 660 -
Securities issued by gov t:
22 837 003 22 837 003 - - - .
Demand deposits and balances with
commiardtdl barke 22727 874 22727 874 - 5991290 5991 290 -
Total 286 783 617 278 170 206 8613 411 201 437 927 178 561 414 22876 513

In Its lending activities, the Bank alms to reduce its credit risk and expected credit losses. As a measure to mitigate this risk, customers provide the Bank with various types of

collaterals: real estate, wheeled vehicles, equipment, inventori

Bank's exposure to credit risk. The guarantees are issued by the E

Fondas UAB.

Portfolio as at 31 December by the type of financial asset:

Factoring
with recourse
without recourse
with limited recourse
reverse

Total factoring

Loans

Finance lease

Total

* - ek Atbradi

Investment Fund (EIF).
As at 31 December, loss allowance was set for ivabl

promissory notes, i S, 9

etc. The Bank also makes good use of guarantees to lower

P I tment Fund, |

as follows:

Gross carrying b st —
Gross carrying amount — loans

Gross carrying amount — finance lease
Gross outstanding debt nominal

Loss allowance — factoring receivables
Loss allowance — loans granted

Loss allowance - finance lease

Total loss allowance

Total outstanding debt nominal

and loans g

ticijy ir verslo garantjos UAB (INVEGA), and Zemés Okio Paskoly Garantijy

Protacted with Protected with

No:.::‘u;:;;:m Insurance or Net ocutstanding insurance or
(EUR) guarantes,” during 2021 (EUR) guarantee,® during

during 2022 2021

14 803 419 11513 838 11 480 353 562 183
2772125 249 266 5751423 1853 653
16 194 823 16 194 923 22 462 860 22 462 860
33 770 467 27 958 027 39 694 636 24 878 696
135 316 982 104 141 512 82 548 227 43476 151
18210927 16 979 663 834 712 834 712
187 298 376 149 079 202 123 077 575 69 189 559

Euler Hermes or Coface — loan and trade credit insurance; Guarantee providers: INVEGA, Zemés Ukio Paskoly Garantijy Fondas, the European

2022 2021
EUR EUR
33817 48 39827 659
136 729 943 83370 202
18 317 194 836 520
188 854 485 124 034 471
(46 881) (133 023)
(1412 961) (822 066)
(106 267) (1808)
(1 566 108) (956 895)
187 298 376 123 077 576
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22, Risk management (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, ECLs for f; ing and other ivables were set by customers risk level as follows:
Gross
Risk grade mm;:nding, E::::::‘;;‘:‘ Nt ul;;l;nﬁng.
R

Al 20834 - 20 834

Low risk customers A2 288 230 (105) 288125
_ A3 11872 268 (6 498) 11865 770

Total 12 181 332 (6 603) 12174729

B1 20 351 663 (17 262) 20 334 401

Medium risk customers B2 42 197 870 (54 551) 42143319
B3 46 271 974 (137 666} 46 134 308

Total 108 821 507 (209 479) 108 612 028

c1 14 668 745 (63 862) 14 604 883

Increased risk customers cz2 5497 844 (32 237) 5 465 607

c3 30 560 137 (323 474) 30 236 663

Total 50 726 726 (419 573) 50 307 153

D1 5235928 (90 313) 5145615

High risk customers D2 946 578 {42 620) 903 958

D3 67 899 (4 533) 63 366

Total 6 250 405 (137 466) 6112939

E1 - - -

Customers with default indication E2 - i &

E3 10 884 515 (792 988) 10 091 527

Total 10 884 515 {792 988) 10 091 527
Total 188 864 485 {1 566 109) 187 298 376

As at 31 December 2021, ECLs for factoring and other receivables were set by cust risk level as follows:
Gross
Risk grade outstanding, E*:::::?Ec:::l ot ol.:::;ndlng.
EUR

Al . F =

Low risk customars A2 191 832 (227) 191 605

A3 2293737 {1615) 2292 122

Tatal 2 485 569 {1.842) 2483727

B1 B 502 185 (10 013) 8492172

Medium risk customers B2 12517126 (26 810) 12 490 316

B3 31424 972 (124 747) 31 300 225

Total 52 444 283 (161 570) 52282 713

c1 52 583 607 (281 745) 52 301 862

Increased risk customers cz 3577951 (18 545) 3 559 406
ca 11757 687 (224 011) 11533 676

Total 67 919 245 {524 301} 67 394 944

D1 632 381 (7 612) 624 769

High risk customers D2 - - -

D.g - - -

Total 632 381 (7612) 624 769

E1 - - -

Customers with default indication E2 - - -

E3 552 992 (261 570) 291 422

Total 552 992 (261 570) 291 422

Total 124 034 470 (956 895) 123 077 575
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22. Risk management (continued)

Off-balance sheet commitments

The Bank's standard factoring and loan agreements may be at any time and without prior notice unconditionally terminated. Accordingly, expected credit losses are not calculated on

unused limit. Only lease and property devel
loan commitmeants.

t loan agr

Is require the Bank to provide financing; therefore, these agreements are subject to the ECL estimation for undrawn

As at 31 December 2022, expected credit losses for off-bal sheat i ts were set by cust risk lavel as follows:
Gross off-
Net off-balance
balance sheet Expected credit
Risk grade comimltmants. Josses, EUR sheet commitments,
EUR
EUR
Al 28 340 588 - 28 340 588
Low risk customers. A2 2100731 - 2100731
A3 14 592 779 - 14 592 779
Total 45 034 098 - 45 034 098
B1 4146 013 - 4146 013
Medium risk customers B2 11 144 863 (572) 11 144 291
B3 11 138 146 (397) 11137 749
Total 26 420 022 {969) 26 428 053
[+] 8 587 060 {1417) B 585 643
Increased risk cuslomers c2 2831596 {5 241) 2 B26 355
c3 3414 077 {10 560) 3403 517
Total 14 832 733 (17 218) 14 815 515
D1 100 000 (39) 99 961
High risk customers D2 z = =
D3 118 599 - 118 599
Total 218 599 (39) 218 560
E1 - - -
Customers with default indication E2 - - -
E3 2701619 - 2701619
Total 2701619 - 2701619
Total 89 216 071 {18 226) 89 197 845
As at 31 December 2021, expected credit losses for off-bak sheet i ts were set by cust: risk level as follows:
Gross off-
Net off-balance
balance sheet Expected credit
Riskgrade —  nmitmonts, lossss, EUR.  Thwetcommitments,
EUR
EUR
Al - - -
Low risk customers A2 208 168 - 208 168
A3 3163 162 - 3163 162
Total 3371330 - 3371330
B1 7574531 - 757453
Medium risk customers B2 11525 536 (61) 11525 475
B3 16 197 766 380 16 197 386
Total 7 2
c1 27 559 689 (54 803) 27 504 886
Increased risk customers c2 5183 265 (8 632) 5174 633
C3 8 247 6595 38 235 8 209 360
Total i 40888879
D1 2 168 644 (35 293) 2133351
High risk customers D2 - - -
D3 - - -
Total 2 168 644 35 293 2133 351
E1 - - -
Customers with default indication E2 - - -
E3 638 503 - 638 503
Total 638 503 - 638 503
Total — 82466859 (137 404) B2 329 455_
Carrying amount of loans at the end of 2022 and 2021 by stages:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
2022-12-31 2021-12-31 2022-12-31 2021-12-31 2022-12-31 2021-12-31
Factoring 33 672 567 39 675 246 38186 - 59714 19 389
Loans 120 420 498 81427 458 5012589 796 466 9 883 895 324 304
Finance lease 16 661 853 834 712 1401 156 - 147 818 -
Total TIOTSA o918 127 G451 93T 795 466
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22. Risk management (continued)

Expected credit losses
When calculating expected credit losses, the clients’ PDs are adjusted based on the GDP and ploy rate fi ts p
Lithuania. In Latvia, the clients’ PDs are adjusted based on the GOP and ployment rate fi p by the Ministry of Fi

ted by the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of
Inance of the Republic of Latvia,

The probability of default is adjusted by considering 12-month projections for customers in Stage 1 and three-year projections for customers in Stage 2 based on the contract maturity

(one of two ways to adjust the likelih

There were no any debts written off in 2022,

dof b

Y

Movement of credit loss allowances during 2022 by stages:

Provisi for on-bal

sheet fin

Cash and balances at banks

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Bonds

Stage 1

Proiiei

for an-bat

sheet fi

ial assets:

ial agsels:

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3
Total:

Provi: for fi
Stage 1
Total provisions:

ial liabilities g

in Stage 2).

Expected credit
losses atthe  Change in expected Expected credit
beginning of cradit losses, EUR losses at the end of
2022, EUR thousand 2022, EUR thousand
thousand
4 66 70
- 47 47
684 (63) 621
7 145 152
266 527 793
961 722 1683
137 {119} 18
1098 603 1701

Breakdown of loans in Stage 3 by type of collateral at the end of 2022 (comparative information for 2021 is not provided due to lack of historical data):

Gross outstanding,
EUR

Real eslate 29794
Motor and wheeled vehicles 37 801
Melbonsl-and sgranationsi o 1014 661
Without collateral 9 802 259
Total: — 0B84 515
e ——— 1
Breakdown of exposures in Stage 3 by type of financing at the end of 2022 (comparative information for 2021 is not provided due to lack of historical data):
Gross Expected credit Fair value of
outstanding, EUR  losses, EUR  etoutstanding, EUR o, eral, EUR

Factoring 67613 (7 899) 59 714 27718
Loans 10648 616 (765 721) 9883 895 887 863
Finance lease 167 286 (19 368) 147 918 146 008
Total 10 884 515 (792 988) 10 091 527 1061 590
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22, Risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk’ is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in i bli jated with its fi | liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Liquidity risk arises from mismatches in the timing and amounts of cash ﬂaws which is inherent to the Bank’s of and i

Liquidity risk management

The Bank sets the strategy for managing liquidity risk, The top Management approves the Bank's liquidity policies and p dures. Chief Fi ial Officer ges the Bank's liquidity
position on a day-io-day basis.

The Bank's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Bank's reputation. The key el ts of the Bank's liquidity strategy are as follows:

-maintaining a diversified fi ing base, including collection of term deposits (short and long-term) and equity;

- maintaining an asset portfolio diversified by ity: short-term working capital fi ing (up to 12 ths), medium-term working capital fi ing (up to 36 ths), and loans
and lease with a longer maturities {up to 10 years);

- monitoring maturity mismatches, behavioural characteristics of the Bank's financial assets and financlal liabilities, and the extent to which the Bank's assets are encumbered and s
not available as potential collateral for obtaining financing;

-trass testing of the Bank's liquidity position against various exposures and specific events;

- Asset-liability committee (ALCO) established by the Bank regularly is responsible for monitoring liquidity targets, maturities and prudential indicators. The ALCO Commitlee

decides on financing plans for the Bank to mest its perf bjectives in terms of fi ing costs, and other liquidity-related elements.
The table below p nis ining maturities for the Bank;s financial assets and financial liabilities:
Akt Gross nominal
31 December 2022 Carrying amount 0-3 months 3-6 months 6-12 months More than 1 years
EUR infiow f{outflow)
Financial liabilities by type
fin
Customer deposits 242279 911 240 390 617 43 197 804 19 285 059 98 199 932 79 707 B22
Lease liabilities 311345 311 345 39 509 42 024 82 306 147 506
Total 242 591 256 240 701 962 43 237 313 19 327 083 98 282 238 79 855 328
Financial assets by type
Factoring and other Booaa 33 770 467 33780 373 899 038 B 288 201 8213124 16 380 009
Loans to customers 135 316 982 135 970 348 14 081 945 1595 B08 19 254 575 101 038 020
Finance lease 18 210 927 18 221 659 - - 25927 18 195 732
Other financial assets 209 422 209 422 169 387 - 40 035 -
i exalng iy guvumimarily 22790 253 22760 253 s i i 22790 263
Total 210 298 051 210 972 055 15150 371 9 854 009 27 533 661 758 404 014 _
At Gross nominal
" D.e::]:or 2021 Carrying amount inflow f{outflow) 0-3 months 3-6 months 6-12 months More than 1 years
“Financial liabilties by type
Non-derivative financial lisbilities
Customer deposits 141 850 047 141401719 14 349 749 16 862 760 57 591 343 52 597 867
Lease liabilities 239 623 230 623 29 188 28 892 58 121 123 422
Total 142 089 670 141 641 342 14 378 937 16 891 652 57 649 464 52721 289
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22, Risk management {continued)

As at
31 December 2021 Carrying amount Iﬁrnu Rominal 0-3 months 3-6 months 6-12 months More than 1 years
EUR nflow /(outflow)
Financial assets by type
Non-derivative financial assets
et i 39694 636 39785 686 9880 180 7713886 26739 22 164 881
Loans to customers 83 382 938 82 967 646 847 121 3606 082 341823 78172620
Finance lease 834 712 836 189 - - 195 127 641062
Other financial assets 108 899 108 899 108 899 - - -
Total 124 021 186 132 195 956 11 581 751 12103 657 600 295 — 107910253

The terms used in the tables of this Note have lhn fuunwmg msarungs

Gross outstanding means the final due princi terest past due, administration fees, commissions and other contract fees.
Net outstanding means gross amount due net of expected credit lossss

Carrying amount means net amount due.

Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk that could potentially cause losses due to human errors, inadeq) or faulty internal p ystem failures or external events, The Bank

dvides P risk and Hs g into the following areas: money laundering and terrorist financing risk, p risk, inf tion and Icati hnology risk, legal
pli risk, external risk and p | risk. External fraud is potentially the biggest operational threat for the Bank. There may be some fraud risks involved and some

dtania may try to exercise fraudulent acimty against the Bank.

Risks (not audited) Material/Not Material (not audited)

Operational risk Material

Money laundering risk (ML) Material

Operational and ML risk management

The Bank's objective s to manage operational risk so as 1o balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Bank's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and

Innovation. In all cases, the Bank's policy requi pli with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Chef Risk Officer is responsible for the gement of operational risk. He also responsible for monitoring aperational risk controls. This responsibility is supported by the
pment of overall Company dards for the g t of operati 'risknnﬂ'nefolnmngms

requir s for appropriate segregation of duties, including the Independ isation of tr i
i ts for the iliation and i g of t i

-oarnpﬁmc.e with regulatory and other legal raq‘.litamenm
-documerﬂaﬂnn of controls and procedures;

q ts for the periodi of operational risk, adequacy of Is and related procedures thereof;
qui ts for the reporting of operati Iossas and proposed ramedial aclion;
ining and profassi s o

-ethical and business slmdards

-information technology and cyber risks;
~risk mitigation, including insurance where this is cost-effective.

Compliance with the Bank's standards Is sup d by a prog of periodic reviews by Internal Audit. The results of Internal Audit revi are di d with the Manag of
the Bank.

The Bank has processes in place to mitigate the risks described above by: g the d 1t i before fi i ying the pli with ts, and, for the
purpose of factoring, verifying the invoices submitted and supporting docl.rnam in compliance wﬂh the Bank's prmadwse An for the purpose of financing, assessing the

ppropriat of the customer's compli with obligations towards the Bank (is not past due, performs other contractual obligations, et.).

Managing the Bank's risks relating to money laundering and terrorist financing is an inlegral part of its overall risk g 1 The p leader is AML Compliance
Officer. He Is responsible for the day to day implementation of the Bank's Ant-Money Laundering and Counter-Temorist Financing Poﬁcy and hlematranal Sanctions Policy, as well as
systems and controls which support and facilitale them. Considering the scope and nature of its busi . the Bank impl money laundering and ist financing risk

identification, assessment, and management p d as well as effective tools to mitigate such risks.
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23, Fair value

The carrying values of the Bank’s principal fi ial i trade and other payables, long-term and short-term borrowings, approximates their fair values. The following table

shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels In the fair value hierarchy. The carrying amount of financial liabilities not

measured at fair value approximales their fair value.

Financial assets
Cash on hand and balances with central banks
Loans to customers
F ing and other ivabl
Finance lease
Other financial assets
ities issued by g It

Financial liabilities
Customer deposits
Payables

Quantitative disclosures of the Bank's financial assets and liabilities in the fair value

Financial assets

Cash on hand and balances with central banks
Loans to customers

Facloring and other ivabl

Finance lease

Other financial assets
Securities issued by governments

Financial liabilities
Customer deposits
Payables

Quantitative disclosures of the Bank's financial assets and liabilities in the fair value

Financlal assets

Cash on hand and balances with central banks
Loans to customers

Fi ing and other ivabl

Finance lease

Other financial assets

Financial liabilities

Customer deposits
Payables

Carrying amount Fair value

As at 31 December 2022

Carrying amount Fair value

As at 31 December 2021

EUR EUR EUR EUR
66 398 817 66 398 817 54 522 42 54 522 842
135 316 982 135 316 982 B2 548 555 82 548 555
33 770 467 33 770 467 39 694 636 39 694 636
18 210 927 18 210 927 B34 383 834 712
209 422 209 422 108 899 108 899
22790 253 22 780 253 - -
241 916 268 241 916 268 141 560 543 141 560 543
6517 687 6 517 887 4 529 966 4 529 966
hy as at 31 D ber 2022:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR

66 398 817 - - 66 398 817
- 135 316 982 - 135 316 982

- 33770 467 - 33 770 467

- 18 210 827 - 18 210 927

- 208 422 - 209 422

- 22 790 253 - 22 790 253

- 241916 268 - 241916 268

- 6517 887 - 6 517 887

t hi hy as at 31 D ber 2021:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR

54 522 842 - - 54 522 842
- B2 548 555 . 82 548 555

- 39 694 636 - 39 694 636

- 834 383 - 834 383

- 108 899 - 108 899

& 141 560 543 - 141 560 543

& 4 529 966 - 4 529 966
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24, R nt of P Inf ti
The Bank reviewed the methodology for classifying items in the sep
statements, by making corresponding adj to the comparative inf

ided to reflect more accurately the classification of the items in the financial

The adjustment impact on the Bank’s statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of financial position and the statement of cash flows is presented

below:
statement of profit or loss

TR iculated using effective interest method
Default interest

Interest expenses

Other operating income

Commission expenses

Commission income

Net MR 7 \

Credit loss allowance

Loss all for doubtiul ivabh
Loss allowance for cash al banks
Payroll expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and equip and rization of | it
Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Profit (loss) before tax

Income tax expense
Profit {loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive Income, net of tax

Statement of financial position

Assets

Cash on hand and balances with central banks
Loans to customers and factoring receivables
Loans to customers

Factoring receivables

I tments into subsidiari

Intangible assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax asset

Other financial assets

Other non-financial assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Customer deposits
Lease liabilities
Payables
Provisions

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity
Issued capital

Retained eamings

Total equity
Total equity and liabliities

2021 (before
restatement)
EUR
5832 870
9537
(500 954)
82481

(641 478)
(1962)

(2 852 602)
{2031 720)
(3 680)

!107 m;
13 512
Iﬂ WE!

93 996]

2021 (before
__restatement)
EUR

54 522 842

83 382038
39 684 636
2002 500
587 115
112814
238175
376 269
108 899
2552

315 820

181 344 560

141 850 047
238 622

4 529 966
137 404
318 851

147 075 890
—_—

36424 791
(2156 121)
34268670
181 344 560

Restatement

(9 537)
{147 492)

(14 775)
9537

(643 440)
641478
1962

(234 204)
396 471

Restaternent

122 807 273
(83382 938)
(39 694 636)

587 115
(587 115)

(2552)
(286 953)

{459 805)

(288 504)

(170 301)
(459 805)

(459 805)

2021 (after

restatement)
EUR

5832 870

(648 446)
82 481

(14 775)
9537

(5 238)

(643 441)

(2 852 602)

(234 204)

{1 635 248)

(3 680)
A

13 512
!!3 m!

(39

2021 (after

restatement)
EUR

54 522 842
122 907 274

2002 500
587 115

112814
238176
376 269
108 899

28 867
180 884 755

141 560 543
239622

4 529 966
137 404
148 550

146 616 085

36 424 791
(2 156 121)
34 268 670
180 884 755
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24, Rest of comparative infi ion (continued)
Statement of cash flows

2021 (before 2021 (after
nsm{rmuﬂl Restatertiant mlah{mtnq
EUR EUR
Profit/{loss) for the year (93 996) - (93 996)
Cash flows from/used in operating activities
Credit loss allowance - 643 411 643 441
Interest income - (5832 870) (5832 870}
Interest expenses - 648 446 648 446
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of intangible assets - 239 168 239 168
Impairment of investments in shares of subsidiaries - - -
Change in deferred tax . (13512) (13512)
Other non-cash transactions elimination 4963 72777 77 740
Depreciation and ization of non-current assets 161 457 (151 457) -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 82748 (82 748) -
Impai of f 9 ivables, net 13 674 {13 674) -
Impaimment of loans, net 490 401 {490 401) -
Impairment of balances at banks, net 1962 (1962) -
Impairment of off-balance shest commitments, net 137 404 {137 404) -
Net interest income (5 341 454) 5341454 =
Total adjustments to operating activities (4 552 841) 315 254 (4 237 587)
ing capital adj
Net change in loans granted (68 775 127) (17 312 866) (86 087 993)
Changes in other financial assets - (77 534) (77 534)
Changes in other ssselx (384 903) 77 534 (307 369)
Changes in it 135782 645 {447 006) 135 335 639
Change in trade payahles 2043 485 {350 800) 1692 685
Changas ln other liabilities - 271098 271098
i ) in deferred i tax asset (13512) 13512 -
(' yd in factoring ivabl (17 668 137) 17 668 137 -
Total changes In assets and liabilities of operating activities 50 984 450 {157 924) 50 826 526
Interest received 5832 870 (355 272) 5477 598
Default interest received 9537 (9 537)
Interest paid (500 954) 299 514 (201 440)
Net cash flows from operating activities 51773 063 (1962) 51771 101
Investing activities
Investments in subsidiaries (1 752 500) - (1 752 500)
Acquisition of securities issued by governments - - -
Acqguisition of property, plant and eguipment {50 014) (216 008) (266 022)
Purchase of intangible assels (197 261) (1) (197 262)
Net cash fiows used in investing activities !1 999 775! (216 009) !2 215 gl
Financing activities
Lease payments (109 173) 216 009 106 836
Net cash flows from/used in financing activities pm 1?31 216 009 106 836
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 49664 114 (1961) 49 662 153
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period 4 820 280 40 409 4 860 689
Cash and cash eq asat31D it 54 484 394 38 448 54 522 842
25, Notes
Cont L liabilil
There are no any legal proceeding to which the Bank is a subject.
Business acquisition
Optima Information Technology Srl is a financial soft nt y based in Pistoja, ftaly, developing and individual soft ordering solutions to the Bank
since 2013 The acquired business will therefore be a key asset for the Baﬂk playmg a strategic role in digitizing and i'npmvhg the Bank S processes, providing access lo a scope-
for i ional expansion, as well as access to an in-house software development team. The acquired b tracts with 13 speciali

employees.
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25, Notes (continued)

The business was acquired for EUR 1,00. IFRS 3 Busi Combinations does not provide for any method for busi ination of joint ventures, and therefore such acquisition
was ac::ounled lor at carryung amount, with the drl’fererm being recorded in the balanoe sheet in equity as a profil {loss} not recognized in statement of profit and loss and other
=, } with g y pted practice for busi combinations under comman control,
Buslnessacql.ﬁslﬂonis ted in the stat ts of fi ial position,
Company 2022-03-31
Property, plant and equipment 12009
Intangible assets 448 572
Receivables 109320
[Total disposed assets 569 801
2022-03-31
Employee benefits 91 851
Trade payables and other current liabiliies 597 662
otal disposed liabllities, related to disposed assets 689 513
2022-03-31
Loss from business acquisition 119612
119612
The ongoing Russia's war in Ukraine and inflati inue to weigh on the global economic situation, resulting in slower economic ac‘lmly Global growth is projected to
decelerate sharply in 2023, espedalyhlhssumsrea The latest ic data for G y and Lithuania revealed that the gross d tic p of both itri d by

0.4% during Q4 2022,

In order to fight high inflation, the European Central Bank has initiated monetary policy tightening. By the end of 2022, the European Central Bank's rate of main refinancing operations
was 2.5% (compared to 0.0% at the start of the year), and it was increased 1o 3.0% on 8 February 2023. Moreover, the European Central Bank indicated that the key interest rates will
be increased by additional 50 basis points, and does not rule out the possibility of further increasing them in the near future,

The sudden increase of Euribor rates dwen by the European Central Bank's monetary policy had a positive impact on the Bank's financial results in the first quarter of 2023

Hmver. in the light of an rtain ec look, the Bank closely monitars the economic situation and its loan portfolio perf Taking into t the ab
1 , the Bank conti ly reviews and adapls its financing guidelines for new credit origination.
On 24 February 2022, after the Russian Fed ized the independence of the self-proclaimed Donetsk and Luhansk people’s republics and invaded Ukraine, the military

confiict escalated to other regions of the country. The signrﬁcanl changes in the geopolitical context that took place after February 2022 were take into account when preparing
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022. The said geopolitical changes do not have a significant impact on the financial stalements for the year ended 31
December 2022, as they are insignificant to the activities of the Bank,

As of the end of the fi ial year up to approval of the fi ial stat ts, there were no post-balance sheet events that could have infl on the separate fi lal stat

or be additionally disclosed.

Director
Renato La Fianza - 27 April 2023
’ (date)
Authorised person of BDO auditas ir apskaita
Aurelija Janulaityté 27 April 2023
(date)
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